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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

the sales of goods, concessionaire sales, rental income from
operating leases and management service fee income charged

to customers, net of value added tax or other sales tax and TR ITE) -

discounts.

2011 2010 Changes
HK$million HK$million
=-F—— :gfgi SE
BHEBRX BEBTT
Gross revenue 4,730.9 2,601.9 +82%
U
Same store sales growth @ 37% 27% +10%
A & 85 & 1 =@
Turnover 1,291.5 698.9 +85%
EER
EBITDA 311.3 162.2 +92%
ot BT & K B 3 A A
EBIT (Profit from operations) 249.7 133.7 +87%
SRR (RN
Profit for the year 250.9 119.7 +110%
A I
Profit attributable to equity holders 215.2 74.5 +189%
AN A IR ER FE A5 8 A
Basic earnings per share 8.28 cents{l 4.32 cents{lll +92%
G RCE A5 7
Net assets of’the Group 1,458.2 405.5 +260%
REBEEEFE
NAV per share 0.34 dollarjt 0.18 dollaryt +89%
BREEFE
Net cash generated from operations 371.1 196.5 +89%
EBEAZREFE
Area efficiency (per m?) @ 44,800 dollarsst 47,600 dollarsyt -6%
R (g HK)®
Notes: Ff &t -
(1) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from (1) HYHEEERR FrAEEHE &2

HEZ S WA AR AP WKEZ & IR
BEWAZ#E (FREERIEBHE

(2) Same store sales growth represents change in the total gross (2) RAEHEERELTERRARFELSE

revenue for department stores having operations throughout the

comparable period.

MBAEEZBKENEE-

(3)  Area efficiency represents gross revenue per department store (3) HRIEBWERARERSE2FFHEE

annual average operating area.

[ERER
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Five Years Summary Financial Information (2007 - 2011)

IFYBENBE(ZZEZLEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZ =—F——F+_-_HA=+—HIF)Z
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% T 271)

RESULTS
£

Turnover
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) attributable
to equity shareholders
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

—REGEXK
—RIEBERHK

BEM T,/
(B8
_BEmEEE

—RIEEEEH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
DEDUCT:
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET CURRENT
(LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

DEDUCT:

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

AR
niaE
i
R

nE(aE)/
BERR

REERRDAR

B
FRBER

EEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HL%FE

)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—®--Ff  ZT-%F ZTTNHF ZTE/\F ZEELR
TR TEx THT FET FET
1,291,479 698,860 548,052 285,973 115,656
1,291,479 698,860 548,052 285,973 115,656
215,150 74,479 10,168 (361,267) 5,330
215,150 74,479 10,168 (361,267) 5,330

As at 31 December

R+t=A=1+-8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE--f “E-%F “EENE “EEN\F “EELF
FER TAT TAT TET TET
4,041,409 3,190,826 2,183,133 2,068,531 106,574
1,083,542 315,581 197,130 204,022 354,986
1,910,105 1,412,705 1,244,288 1,257,533 103,719
(826,563) (1,097,124) (1,047,158) (1,053,511) 251,267
3,214,846 2,093,702 1,135,975 1,015,020 357,841
1,756,600 1,688,233 895,219 824,083 -
1,458,246 405,469 240,756 190,937 357,841




“hairman’s Statement

ETEHE

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011 (“the year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’'s core business locates in the northwestern
region of China where it operates eight mid-high end chain
department stores and six supermarkets. The store GFA is
approximately 300,000 square meters (3,200,000 square feet),
including approximately 160,000 square meters (1,700,000
square feet) are self-owned properties.

2011 is a year full of opportunities and challenges. During
the year, we have acquired two department stores, five
supermarkets and three quality commercial properties, all of
which successfully integrated in to our business. The Group
continued to enjoy rapid growth in business, profits and
operational expansion in 2011.

The cooperation between the Group and Hony Capital, our
long-term strategic investor as well as our second largest
shareholder, has tightened. During the year, Hony Capital not
only invested HK$443.5 million into the Group to subscribe
additional convertible bonds and provide further funding of
approximately HK$420 million to acquire one of our flagship
store property, but also unconditionally waived all the future
interest of the Company’s convertible bonds it is holding.
Coupon rate has been adjusted from 3% to zero to help the
company save up over a hundred million dollars in interest
expenses and to increase financial abundance to strengthen
the Group’s business foundation.

, . Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Chairman’s Statement
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CORPORATE AWARDS

In November 2011, the Company was selected as a constituent
stock of Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) China
Indices under the MSCI Global Small Cap Indices. The Board
believes that the inclusion will further enhance the recognition
the Company obtained in the international capital market for
outstanding investment potential and business performance.

In 2011, Century Ginwa obtained accolades and awards from
business side include “National Top 10 Aftersales Service
Unit”, “National Advanced Enterprise in Commercial Quality
Management”, “Outstanding Private Enterprise of Shaanxi”,
“Famous Brand in Xi‘an Servicing Industry” and “Top 10
Enterprises of Promoting Domestic Consumption in Xi‘an”, etc.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

In February 2012, the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China officially adopted the “12th Five-Year Plan for the Large-
Scale Development of the Western Regions” formulated by
National Development and Reform Commission. This implies
that in the next few years, the northwestern region where
Century Ginwa operates will be the most preferred center
of development, driving The Grand Western Development
Program to advance to a new level and to achieve a higher
growth rate in gross domestic product and residents’ income
than national average levels. The northwestern region’s
economy will grow faster than coastal provinces, and the
consumption power and aesthetics of the local residents will
keep improving as well.

Regarding sectoral policies, Ministry of Commerce of China
released the “Guiding Opinions on Promoting Development
of Retail Trade During 12th Five-Year Plan”, estimating the
target for the turnover of the entire retail sector to grow at
15% annually during the 12th Five-Year period, and create
additional employment opportunities through stimulating
domestic consumption. We believe more favorable policies
will be in place to booster the retail industry in northwestern
region.

As the leader of mid-high end chain department store
operators in the northwestern region, Century Ginwa will
grasp strategic opportunities to strengthen current competitive
advantages, as well as further expanding the retail network
and seeking acquisition opportunities in the region like
Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Ningxia and Inner Mongolia, etc., so as
to increase the scale of our business and corporate brand
awareness.

EREE
WoF——F+—A KAARABERLA
FIB AR BB (MSCI) A K TSR
BIEM R 2R EEEA DB EERR
I EINCE PN 2 B e
hEEEC i — SR ERE AT B Y
AT REENTEBRRNRR -

RE-ZE——F HLRSEEEZETHAR
ZERBEIRI2HAERRBITETEE
] TeEmEXEeae @R ESEM] - [B
PAEEARELE]  [ATRBELE] K&
[ALEMUATRBE T ELER] F-

ARFERRE

2%/ PEEBKRERENTE
RERZmHIN (A ARE [+ = o 7]
MED) - EBWRE  RARRMEFHR -t
AL B TEn B MY PR L P 2 [ I 3 R K 2 0 K
B YERNRELENOLE HEHFAFAHM
BER—EF e REREEEREN
ERWAZRBBEZEFIHKFHER
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i B R S 308 B e ) 1 f WK b 18 T e
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Currently, the Group is considering the acquisition of 3 large
scale developed or developing commercial centers in Xi'an
of Shannxi, Urumgi of Xinjiang and Yinchuan of Ningxia,
each of which has a GFA of approximately 100,000 square
meters. These are potential acquisition opportunities for the
Group. Nevertheless, the plans are still in very preliminary
stage and the Group will disclose more details concerning the
acquisitions when materialized.

In the future, the Board will consider declaring dividends
whenever condition permits in an aim to increase the return to
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Wu Yijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the restructuring of the Group's core
business has begun to produce results and attained strong
performance. The Group achieved continual rapid business
growth.

(i) The gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 increased to HK$4,730.9 million as
compared to HK$2,601.9 million for the same period
last year, representing an increase of 82%. The increase
in gross revenue was mainly due to increase in same
store sales, full year effect of 2010 acquired stores and
newly acquired stores in 2011.

(ii) In the current year, same store sales growth was 37%
(2010: 27%).

(iii)  Area efficiency (gross revenue per department
store annual average operating area) for 2011
was HK$44,800 per square meter as compared to
HK$47,600 per square meter for the same period last
year, representing a decrease of 6%, which was mainly
due to the lower rate of newly acquired stores.

(iv)  The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 increased to HK$1,291.5 million as
compared to HK$698.9 million for the same period last
year, representing an increase of 85%.

(v) The Group's operating profit (EBIT) for 2011 was
HK$249.7 million, increased by 87% from HK$133.7
million for 2010. The operating profit margin (EBIT
divided by gross sales) increased from 5.14% to 5.28%.

(vi)  The financial income in 2011 was HK$67.5 million
(2010: HK$34.5 million). The increase in financial
income was mainly due to a gain of HK$205.9 million
arising from change in fair value of the convertible
bonds recorded in 2011 (2010: HK$34.3 million).

(vii)  The Group's profit for the year and consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
were HK$250.9 million (2010: HK$119.7 million) and
HK$215.2 million (2010: HK$74.5 million) respectively.

M EE
WA - AEEROEEEET RN
RBRY AEELBHERESRER -

(i) KEBHEE_ZT——F+_-A
=+ HALFEZRRZ®EMNE
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(viii)  The Group’'s net cash generatal from operations for
2011 was HK$371.1 million, increased by 89% from
HK$196.5 million for 2010.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s consolidated net asset
value was HK$1,458.2 million (2010: HK$405.5 million). As at
31 December 2011, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$236.0 million (2010: HK$115.1 million).
The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2011 was
0.57 (2010: 0.22). The gearing ratio, being the bank and other
loans, unsecured notes and convertible bonds, less cash and
cash equivalents divided by the total equity, as at 31 December
2011, was 1.04 (2010: 4.01). The adjusted gearing ratio, being
the bank and other loans and unsecured notes, less cash and
cash equivalents divided by the total equity, as at 31 December
2011, was 0.27 (2010: 0.86).

The capital raising activities during the year are disclosed in
note 29 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We have successfully consolidated our department stores
operation in North-western China, one of the highest growing
regions in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). This enables
the Group to achieve sustained business growth in the year of
2011. This strategy will continue to generate revenue growth
for the Group, while it will also identify further acquisition
opportunities.

Currently, the Group operates eight department stores and six
supermarkets in the North-western China. The store GFA is
approximately 300,000 square meters (3,200,000 square feet),
including approximately 160,000 square meters (1,700,000
square feet) are self-owned properties. The business of which
continued to achieve rapid growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s flagship department store, Xi‘an Bell Tower Store,
commenced business in 1998. The 15-year-old store has
undergone renovation this year, and managed to record 30%
growth in gross revenue despite decrease in overall operating
area by 1/5 during renovation. 12 of the globally renowned
brands recorded national top 5 sales performance in the store.
Among them “Swarovski” topped in national sales ranking,
“Giorgio Armani Cosmetics” ranked second in national sales,
“Chow Tai Fook” ranked third and “Estée Lauder” ranked
fourth as best national sales performers.

Another flagship department store, Xi‘an Hi-Tech Store, has
successfully introduced several global luxury brands during the
year, which further solidified its core leading position in the
commercial area of Xi'an Hi-Tech Industries Development Zone.
Among them, “Gucci” broke the highest first day new store
sales record in China’s operation. The gross revenue of Hi-Tech
Store increased by 52% comparing with last year.

Opened in the second half of 2010, Xi'an Saigo Store located
at the Economy and Technology Development Zone of Xi'an.
Along with Xi‘an government office relocation to that area,
the region has become another key district of development.
Saigo store made profit within a year since its opening.
In January 2012, the group completed the acquisition of
the commercial properties at Saigo International Block and
expanded the store area to over 90,000 square meters. Saigo
Store is going to be upgraded from a simple department
store to the biggest commercial complex in northern region’s
commercial zone in Xi'an that incorporates leisure, shopping,
entertainment and cuisine.

As the Century Ginwa VIP consumption accounts for around
60% of our gross revenue, enhancing member loyalty and
service satisfaction has always been Century Ginwa's key
focus. This year, we have recruited over 40,000 new members,
while over 14,000 members upgraded their status. Within the
year, the launching of phone shopping hotline, along with
corporate microblog and Century Ginwa's official website
all helped establish a better sales and customer relationship
platform.

In 2011, Century Ginwa has modified over 500 brands
including 200 newly introduced brands, 20 of which are
global first tier brands. We have also established a brand
management company to obtain the franchise of high-profit,
high-quality international and domestic second tier as well as
third tier brands. We believe this will become one of the key
growth drivers of Century Ginwa in the future.
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Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital to acquire the
Company’s convertible bonds amounting to HK$887 million
in late 2010, the cooperation between Hony Capital and the
Group has become more intense. In April 2011, Hony Capital
has exercised in full of the convertible bonds options to
subscribe the convertible bonds with the principal amount of
HK$443.5 million. In early June, Hony Capital further provided
the funding of approximately HK$420 million in order for the
Group to acquire the Hi-Tech Store properties. In October,
to further support the development of the Company and
allow the Company to maintain higher working capital, Hony
Capital has unconditionally waived all the future interest of the
convertible bonds it is holding. In this year, Hony Capital has
converted the convertible bonds of HK$305 million into total
1,109,090,908 ordinary shares of the Company, representing
26.9% of the Company’s issued share capital at the date of
report and became the Company’s second largest shareholder.

Hony Capital is an investment fund which is structured as
an exempted limited partnership established in the Cayman
Islands. According to the limited partnership interests of
Hony Capital, Legend Holdings Limited, via its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Right Lane Limited, is the single largest investor in
Hony Capital, with a holding of approximately 14.3% of the
value of the fund. Apart from Legend Holdings Limited, Hony
Capital has 77 other investors with interests ranging from
0.02% to 7.15% of the value of the fund.

Merger & Acquisition

The Group completed the acquisitions of two department
stores and five supermarkets in May 2011. Currently, the
Group operates five department stores in Xi‘an and one
department store in Urumgqi, and two department stores and
six supermarkets in Xianyang.

In order to consolidate the development of its own business
and mitigate the impact of increasing rental expenses due to
appreciation of commercial properties on its operation, the
Group entered a sale and purchase agreement to acquire
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company Limited on 16 May
2011. The shopping mall has a GFA of over 90,000 square
meters, which is a size similar to Festival Walk Shopping Mall
in Hong Kong. Approximately 27,000 square meters of the
shopping mall is currently operated by Xi‘an Century Ginwa
Saigo Shopping Mall Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group. Acquisition of such property may allow expansion of its
operation area, which may in turn generate additional income.
This acquisition has been completed in January 2012.
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In addition, the Group entered a sale and purchase agreement
on 9 June 2011 to acquire CPl Asia Big Bell 2 Limited, the
holding company of the property in which Xi‘an Hi-Tech
Store, operated by Xi‘an Century Ginwa Property Investments
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, is located. The
shopping mall has a GFA of approximately 30,000 square
meters. The acquisition has been approved in shareholders’
Special General Meeting, and are currently pending
completion.

Upon completion, these acquisitions will (i) further enhance
the Group’s asset quality, saving considerable rental expenses
every year; and (ii) eliminate the risk and uncertainty
associated with renewing the lease agreement and facility
lease agreements, which will exert direct and positive influence
on the Group.

On 25 May 2011, the Company entered into a Memorandum
Of Understanding in relation to strategic cooperation in the
PRC with The Swank Shop Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of ENM Holdings Limited, another company listed on the
main board in Hong Kong which will develop and operate
brand stores located in the department stores operated by
the Company. This can help the Group solicit new customers,
further upgrade brand mix and improve the image of the
stores.

The Group will continue to explore other business
opportunities of acquiring department stores in the PRC. The
Board believes that backed by its operation network formed
by these department stores, the Group could further enhance
economies of scale, attract more talents and strengthen the
advantages of bulk purchasing, so as to contribute more
revenue to the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES

The Group’s banking facilities are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 34 to
the financial statements.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group’s operation of department stores
earned revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. Renminbi was
relatively stable although there was an appreciation pressure
during the year. The Directors considered that the Group's
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate was minimal,
and accordingly, the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purpose.

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS

During the year, the Group’s business operations were not
significantly affected by any seasonal and cyclical factors.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s staff was approximately
10,000 (2010: 6,500), including direct employed approximately
2,700 (2010: 1,600) full time employees, remaining was
concession sales staffs. Most of the employees are employed
in Mainland China. The direct employed employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on both individual’'s and Company’s performance,
professional and working experience and by reference to
prevailing market practice and standards. Apart from the
general remuneration package, the Group also granted share
options and discretionary bonus to the eligible staff based on
their performance and contribution to the Group. The Group
regards quality staff as one of the key factors to corporate
success.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian

Mr. Wu Yijian (“Mr. Wu"), aged 51, was appointed as
Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 7
January 2011. Mr. Wu currently holds directorship of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, and he was the executive director
and chairman of the Company from January 2001 to May
2008 and from May 2003 to May 2008, respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with a
Master degree in Economic Management. He was granted
the national titles of “Ten Most Outstanding Youth of
China” in 1996, “Contribution Award of International
Excellent Entrepreneur” in 1997, “Chinese Excellent Youth
Entrepreneur” in 2002 and “National Outstanding Builders
of Socialism with Chinese Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu
is chairman and director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.
("Ginwa Enterprise”) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) and the Ginwa Investment Company Limited. He
is also the committee member of National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, vice-
chairman of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce,
chairman of the Chairmen Board of China Federation of
Industrial Economics, vice-president of the China Association
of Small and Medium Enterprises, vice-chairman of China Red
Ribbon Foundation, expert committee member of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president
of Shaanxi Business Promotion Association, vice-president of
Shaanxi General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president
of Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant,
honorable president of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association
Limited and vice-president of Shaanxi Pharmaceutical
Profession Association.
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Mr. Qiu Zhongwei

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 43, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 3 December 2010 and
was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Company on 7 January
2011 and a member of the remuneration committee.

Mr. Qiu joined Hony Capital in 2005. Hony Capital thru
Glory Keen Holdings Limited was beneficially interested in
6,322,102,827 shares within the meaning of part XV of SFO.
He oversees Hony Capital’s overall investment activities and
direct investments in culture and media, equipment machinery,
consumer goods and retail, and construction materials sectors.
He has extensive experience in direct investments, project
planning, business development and retail business. He built
and served as the chief executive officer of one of the largest
private-owned department stores chain in China. Mr. Qiu holds
a joint Master of Business Administration degree from the
Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University
and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He received his bachelor degree in engineering from Xi‘an
Jiaotong University. He is a non-executive director of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Development
Co., Limited (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
Stock Code: 1157).

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (“Mr. Choon"), aged 44, was
appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 8 March 2010. Mr. Choon has over 20
years of experience in finance, mergers & acquisitions, and
corporate restructuring and held management positions in
various listed companies. Mr. Choon had worked for one of
the Big Four international accountancy firms and another
prestigious CPA firm and had also been engaged in various
mergers and acquisitions exercises. Mr. Choon was the general
manager of Finance Department of Guangnan Holdings
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited with Stock code: 1203) during its restructuring
exercise from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Choon also has experience
in department Store business in the PRC and was the director
of the jointly controlled entity Wuhan Plaza and also held the
position of deputy chief operating officer from 2003 to 2007
of Junefield Department Store Holdings Limited (a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
Stock code: 758). Mr. Choon was appointed as the chairman
assistant of the Company since 2007.
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Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu”), aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11 August 2007. He
is currently vice president of Ginwa Enterprise (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and general manager
of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Limited Company (“Ginwa
Company”), both companies are connected persons of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Qu joined
Ginwa Enterprise and Ginwa Company in 1999. Before that,
Mr. Qu worked with several other large department stores and
shopping malls in Xian, China.

Mr. Qu has nearly 30 years of working experience in
department store business. Mr. Qu received management
education and training in Mainland China. He also received
training in High Level Business Administration from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi
Province Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000
and “China Professional Operational Management Master”
in 2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xian City People’s Assembly.

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha"), aged 54, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2007. He
is currently the financial controller of Ginwa Company, a
connected person of the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules. Mr. Sha joined Ginwa Company in 1997 and was
appointed financial controller and assistant general manager
in 2004 and 2009 respectively. Before Mr. Sha joined Ginwa
Company, he once worked as financial controller of the Supply
Station of XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited, and
the financial controller of Xian Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has more than 20 years of working experience
in commerce and finance. Mr. Sha received management
education and training in Mainland China. He also holds
a master degree in business administration from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He was awarded china career
manager in June 2003 and was appointed as taxation practice
review inspector by Xian Tax Bureau in the PRC in 2006. He
obtained a chief financial officer qualification certificate in
respect of business administration positions in 2007 and was
appointed as taxation practice review inspector of the local
taxation bureau in Lianhu District, Xian in 2009.
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Mr. Chen Shuai

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”), aged 38, was appointed as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 3 December
2010 and was appointed as a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company on 7
January 2011.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. Hony Capital thru
Glory Keen Holdings Limited was beneficially interest in
6,322,102,827 shares within the meaning of part XV of SFO.
He directs investments in financial services, culture and media,
consumer goods and retail and construction material sectors.
Mr. Chen has extensive experience in investment management,
supplier management and retail business. Prior to joining
Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked in an investment
company, a PRC retail chain and department store and a PRC
domestic comprehensive supermarket company. Mr. Chen
holds an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from the China Europe International Business School. He
received his bachelor degree in economics from Beijing Forestry
University. He is a non-executive director of China Glass
Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 3300).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan"), aged 58, was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 24 September 2004. Mr. Chan graduated with
a bachelor degree in Social Science (Economics) from the
University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1978. Mr. Chan
has over 26 years’ experience in marketing and business
development. Mr. Chan is also an executive director of China
Solar Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 155) and
Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock
Code: 8266).
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Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 41, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 25
September 2008. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants; and The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 18 years of experience in
accounting and finance. At present, Mr. Tsang runs his own
firm and practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Services Holding Limited (formerly known as K.PI.
Company Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code: 605) which is engaged
in retail business and provision of short term pawn loan in
PRC. Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of
ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with Stock Code:
30) which is engaged in the business of financial information
services for the period from 18 September 2008 to 28 January
2011.

Ms. Li Ling

Ms. Li Ling (“Ms. Li"), aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and a
chairman of remuneration committee on 16 January 2012.
Ms. Li has been working as the general manager of certain
reputable department stores and shopping complex in China
over the past 10 years and has extensive management
experience in department store and retail business. Ms.
Li holds a master of science degree in biology from the
Hangzhou University (currently known as Zhejiang University).
She is a consultant of Hangzhou Jiebai Group Company
Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011 are set out in the financial statements on
pages 42 to 49.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
period ended 31 December 2007 and for the five years ended
31 December 2011 and the assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 are set
out on page 5.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]

EEMAREAFE oSG EREEX
FATEERRK

FEXEK
ARRZEBEBREREER - SHB R
Al EBXBHN P HRRMEI6 -

FERKE

AEERAFE 2GMERERE KA
RAAAREER -_E——F+-_A=+—
BZ B BORR SR E425 498 2 B 5k
WO

E=ZTEFENAFEIRN AR -

MBEE
rEBREZ_ZZtF+=-_A=+—H
M rNEE—_E——F+_A=1+—H
FREFEZHEEEE URAEERZ
TE+F —EENF _ZTTNEF =T
—EFRZF——F+ZH=1T—HZE
ERGEMEFHNESE -

N

BT M aE29 -



Directors’ Report

EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution
of the Company passed on 15 February 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”), the Company may grant options to the
eligible person of the Company to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time excluding
for this purpose shares issued in the exercise of options for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected
eligible person for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 15 February 2011 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended according to the Share
Option Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person of the Share Option Scheme includes the
followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ili)  a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(iv)  any person or entity whose service to the Group or
business with the Group contributes or is expected to
contribute to the business or operation of the Group as
may be determined by the directors from time to time.

The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to Scheme
adjustments).

Details of movements in share options of the Company are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, no reserves (2010: Nil) were
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In
addition, the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$893,755,000 (2010: HK$387,920,000), may
be distributed in form of fully paid bonus shares.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in convertible notes of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$20,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (appointed on
7 January 2011)

Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing (resigned on
27 September 2011)
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Ms. Li Ling (appointed on

7 January 2011)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Mr.
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin, Mr. Qu lJiagi and Mr. Sha Yingjie will
retire from the office of directorship by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms.
Li Ling, and considers them to be independent for this year.
The Company considers that each of such Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent from the Group based
on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 15 to 19 of the annual report.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest

paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The details of connected transactions of the Group which
were discloseable under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") which were required to be entered
into the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest sand short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) and/or the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name of director Nature of interests

BEEns EEME

Personal interests

8 AR

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
BRI A

Personal interests

(EPN:

Mr. Sha Yingjie
DEANFTE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules or any interests which are
required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERTETHAERERAAR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 MHEROREZZERZRER
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (#&)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) AAFBREZRR
Company
Number of share options
BREZAR
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted as at
Price Vesting and 1 January during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant (HK$)  exercise period 2011 the year 2011
R-ZEB——F
R-Z——F +=A
THEE —-A—-B# =+—H
ABRARE BB (%) BERITES RITE FRAREH i K AT 6
Mr. Wu Yijian 20 Oct 2010 0.315 20 Oct 2010 to 17,500,000 - 17,500,000
19 Oct 2015
R—BEAE —T—%F —Z-TH+HR=-tHZ
+HAZ=+AH —ZE-aF¥+A+AIA
20 Oct 2011 0.490 20 Oct 2011 to - 15,000,000 15,000,000
19 Oct 2017
—E——F —E——%+A=+R=%
+HA=-+H —E—+t§+A+hAH
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit,20 Oct 2010 0.315 20 Oct 2010 to 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Edwin 19 Oct 2015
BHREALE —T—ZF —E-THF+HA=-+RHE
+A=-+A ZT-RFETATNA
20 Oct 2011 0.490 20 Oct 2011 to - 10,000,000 10,000,000
19 Oct 2017
—E-—F —Z2——F%+HA=tHZ
+A=-+H —Z—+tF+A+NA
Mr. Qu Jiaqi 20 Oct 2010 0.315 20 Oct 2010 to 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
19 Oct 2015
BMRELE —E-TF —E-TF+A=+RHZE
+A=-+H —E-RA¥+ATAIA
20 Oct 2011 0.490 20 Oct 2011 to - 10,000,000 10,000,000
19 Oct 2017
—E——F —T——%+A=+RZE
+HA=-+H “T—tF+A+NA
Mr. Sha Yingjie 20 Oct 2010 0.315 20 Oct 2010 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
19 Oct 2015
DEREE —E-TF —E-THF+AZ+RHE
+A=+AH —ZT-AF¥+A+AIA
20 Oct 2011 0.490 20 Oct 2011 to - 7,500,000 7,500,000
19 Oct 2017
—E——F —E——%+A=t+RH=Z
+HE=-+H —T—+tF+A+AIA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2011.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2011, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
(a)

Long position/short position in the shares of the (a)

Company

Name of shareholder

BRER

Best Mineral Resources Limited

Mr. Chen Jian

Rzt

Glory Keen Holdings Limited
REZERERDA

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited

Hony Capital Management Limited

Mr. Zhao John Huan
HEEE
Right Lane Limited

BHARLDE
Legend Holdings Limited

HARERBR AR

Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan
Management Consulting Centre
IR R EEEREARAT O

Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Tung
Management Consulting Ltd.
IR HEREREATRAR

Chinese Academy of Sciences
Holdings Co., Ltd.
MEMEREFEELERRET

A

Chinese Academy of Sciences

RER 2k

Long position/
short position

RE/HR

Long position
kB
Long position
kB

Long position
kB

Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
EA
Long position
kB
Long position
RE
Long position
RE
Long position

RE

Long position

R

Nature of interests

EEME

Corporate interests
NEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REEXERE#ES

Corporate interests
NGIE: 2

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLESGER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLESGER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLESGER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLESGER

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLES AR

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLES AR

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLESF GRS

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEF GRS

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRLEF GRS

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REZRXFEFAER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REEXERE#ES

Annual Report 2011

FERR (&)
FAARGZRAER

Number of
issued shares
held

e
K& E

1,159,529,440

1,159,529,440

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

2,268,620,348

(Note 1)
(Htat1)

(Note 1)

(Fet1)

(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)

(Note 2)

(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)

(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)

(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
(Note 2)

(Ht7E2)

(Note 2)

(Fet2)

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital

of the Company
EARDTF
BRTREAZ
BABED
29.98%

29.98%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%

58.65%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FTERR (%)
(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b) RAEQXTRESTETIRET M
. . . A T A [—] 2%
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as AROZRAEER (ERREH
Fi=]
defined in Part XV of the SFO) REERBIEXVE)
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the issued
Long position/ issued shares share capital
Name of shareholder short position Nature of interests held of the Company
i ERAE
~ S T=h £ BRITREAZ
BRREE RR/ER EEME Ro#E BROEDL
Best Mineral Resources Limited Long position Corporate interests 324,391,570 (Note 1) 8.39%
kR NGIE 3 (Hfatt)
Mr. Chen Jian Long position Interest in a controlled 324,391,570 (Note 1) 8.39%
corporation ‘
BR b 5% A= 235 REEEBERERER (Kzz1)
Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long position Corporate interests 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
REZERERDA 235 NCIL: £ (Hfet3)
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
ke REEEBERERER (Ki73)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
rE REEEERHERER (HfeE3)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited  Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479  (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
RE REEEERERER (Hfet3)
Hony Capital Management Limited ~ Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
ke REEEBRERER (Ki73)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation
HoEEE rE REEEERHEER (HfeE3)
Right Lane Limited Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479  (Note 3) 104.79%
\ corporation
HHRER AT 235 REEEERERER (Hfet3)
Legend Holdings Limited Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
BBIERARAR kB REEEERERER (Ki73)
Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
Management Consulting Centre corporation
I REFERERZAD O kB REEEERHERER (HfeE3)
Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Tung Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
Management Consulting Ltd. _ corporation
EREFEREREAERAA RE REREE R #ES (Hfet3)
Chinese Academy of Sciences Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
Holdings Co., Ltd. corporation \
TRENEREAEELSERET KB REEEBEFERER (Ki73)
NS
Chinese Academy of Sciences Long position Interest in a controlled 4,053,482,479 (Note 3) 104.79%
corporation ‘
T EIR 2R 235 REEEERERER (Kf7t3)
Grand Well Group Limited Long position Corporate interests 236,250,000 (Note 4) 6.11%
RE NEIER (Kfet4)
Mr. Mak Kam Fai Long position Interest in a controlled 236,250,000 (Note 4) 6.11%
corporation
BRBEE RE REE BB ERER (Hfat4)

HESREEZRARAT | —B——FFHR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(M

Best Mineral Resources Limited (“BMRL") held
1,159,529,440 Shares and 324,391,570 underlying
Shares related to its derivative interests under the BMRL
Convertible Bonds in its own name with the principal
amount of HK$175,171,448 with conversion price
of HK$0.54 per share (“BMRL Convertible Bonds").
Mr. Chen Jian held 100% of the issued share capital
of BMRL. As such, Mr. Chen Jian was deemed to be
interested in 1,159,529,440 shares and 324,391,570
underlying shares related to its derivative interests by
virtue of his shareholding in BMRL. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the BMRL Convertible Bonds,
no holder of the BMRL Convertible Bonds or any party
acting in concert with such holder shall be permitted
to exercise the conversion rights attaching to the BMRL
Convertible Bonds if such exercise would result in such
holder or any party acting in concert with it being
required to make a mandatory general offer for the
shares of the Company under the Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases and/or the public
float of the Company would become less than 25% of
the issued share capital as required under the Listing
Rules after issuance of such Shares.

The derivative represents the BMRL Convertible Bonds.
Under the terms of the BMRL Convertible Bonds,
the conversion rights to the BMRL Convertible Bonds
cannot be exercised if, immediately after exercise of
such conversion rights into the Shares, the holder(s)
of the BMRL Convertible Bonds its concert parties will
trigger a general offer obligation under the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers and/or the public float
of the Company will be less than 25% of the issued
share capital of the Company as required under the
Listing Rules after issuance of such Shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

The long position of 2,268,620,348 Shares represents
(i) the 1,109,090,908 Shares held by Glory Keen
Holdings Limited (“Glory Keen”); and (ii) the security
interest held by Glory Keen over the 1,159,529,440
Shares held by BMRL under share charge. Hony Capital
Fund 2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital
of Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Capital Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P.. Mr. Zhao John Huan and Right Lane Limited
respectively own 55% and 45% equity interests in
Hony Capital Management Limited. Right Lane Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Legend Holdings
Limited. Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co.,
Ltd. and Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan Management
Consulting Centre are the substantial shareholders
of Legend Holdings Limited, with 36% and 35%
interests, respectively. Chinese Academy of Sciences
Holdings Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinese Academy of Sciences. Beijing Lian Chi Zhi
Tung Management Consulting Ltd. is the sole general
partner of Beijing Lian Chi Zhi Yuan Management
Consulting Centre. Each of the above-mentioned
parties is therefore deemed to be interested in the
security interest held by Glory Keen.

The long position of 4,053,482,479 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 3,729,090,909
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible Bonds and the security interest held
by Glory Keen under the BMRL share charge over the
324,391,570 underlying Shares which may be issued
(subject to the conversion restriction as stated in Note
(1) above) under the BMRL CB. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
Bonds are subject to the restrictions as stated in the
paragraph headed "Principal terms of the Convertible
Bonds” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 30 October 2010.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) Grand Well Group Limited (“Grand Well”) held
236,250,000 underlying Shares related to its
derivative interests under the Grand Well convertible
bond in its own name with the principal amount of
HK$94,500,000 with the conversion price of HK$0.4
per Share. Mr. Mak Kam Fai holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Grand Well. As such, Mr. Mak Kam Fai
is deemed to be interested in 236,250,000 underlying
Shares related to its derivative interests by virtue of his
shareholding in Grand Well.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2011, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any
business apart from the Group's business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together were less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 29 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in note 34(a) to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in
any other litigation or arbitration of material importance and
there is no litigation or claim of material importance known
to the directors to be pending or threatened by or against the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s shares in the market as required under
the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices and internal control policy and procedures from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for certain
deviations. The corporate governance of the Company for the
year is stated as follows:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the period from
1 January 2011 to 6 January 2011 (the “Relevant Period”),
the Company did not have chairman or deputy chairman of
the Board. During the Relevant Period, the Board, with the
assistance of the chief executive officer and other senior
management of the Group, was responsible for overseeing the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group. The Board considers that such
arrangements enable the Group to operate effectively and
ensure a balance of power and authority. Mr. Wu Yijian and
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei have been appointed as Chairman and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 7 January 2011 respectively.
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Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
None of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company is appointed for a specific term. However, all
the directors (Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-
executive) are subject to retirement at least once every three
years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year.

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to CG
Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly and
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximate intervals. During the year, the Board met regularly
and frequently for the review and approval on the business
of department stores. Details of Directors’ attendance of
the Board, Shareholders, audit and remuneration committee
meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out as follows:
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD (continued) EEg2EF(E)
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting AGM & SGM  Committee = Committee = Committee
BRERBF
rER
EEg8E RREBIKE EXZEE FHZEEE REZES
Note 3
fiteE3
Executive Directors
HITEE
Qiu Zhongwei 6/6 0/5 - 2/2 -
&
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin 6/6 5/5 - - -
BHEN
Qu Jiaqi 6/6 0/5 - - -
R B
Sha Yingjie 6/6 1/5 - - -
DEAR
Non-Executive Directors
FMITEF
Note 1 Wu Yijian 6/6 1/5 - - -
fitat R
Chen Shuai 6/6 1/5 2/2 2/2 -
FR A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHITEE
Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 6/6 1/5 2/2 2/2 -
Note 2 Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing 4/4 0/4 212 1/1 -
ftat2 EES
Tsang Kwok Wai 6/6 1/5 2/2 2/2 -
Bl &
Note 1 Li Ling 6/6 1/5 2/2 2/2 -
ftaxt B
Notes: Bt i
1) appointed on 7 January 2011 1) RZE——F—-A+EHEZF
2) resigned on 27 September 2071 2) RZE——FNAZ+EHEIE
3) established on 7 March 2012 3) R-ZE——F=AtHKI
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The primary objective of the audit committee is to review the
financial reporting process of the Group and its internal control
system, oversee the audit process and perform other duties
assigned by the Board and make recommendations for the
Company to improve the quality of financial information to be
disclosed. It also reviews the annual and interim reports of the
Company prior to their approval by the Board.

The audit committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the audit committee consists of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Li Ling, one Non-executive Director,
Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter is the chairman of
audit committee.

The audit committee together with management and
independent auditors have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2011, and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2011 prior to their approval by the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A remuneration of HK$3,895,000 was paid/payable to the
Company’s external auditors for the provision of annual audit
services in 2011. During the year, the fees paid/payable to
the external auditors for audit services in connection with
acquisition of subsidiaries, amounted to HK$4,258,000.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary duty of the remuneration committee is
to formulate the remuneration’s structure and policy of the
Group, reviewing the remuneration packages of Executive
Director and Senior Management, including bonuses and
options granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure
that such remuneration is reasonable and not excessive.
Generally, their remunerations are determined based on their
experience and qualifications, the Group’s performance as well
as market conditions.

The committee shall consist of not less than two members.
Currently, the remuneration committee consists of one
Executive Director: Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, three Independent
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Li Ling, and one Non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Ms. Li Ling is the chairman of the
remuneration committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 7 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The principal duties of the nomination committee
are to identify and nominate suitable candidates for the
appointment of the Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on succession planning for the Directors. The
nomination committee comprises one non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Chen Shuai and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong,
Peter and Ms. Li Ling. Mr. Tsang kwok wai is the chairman of
the nomination committee.

The nomination committee has reviewed the board’s structure,
size and composition to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills, independent and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness at least
annually to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and
the Group’s assets. During the year ended 31 December
2011, the Board was assisted by the audit committee in
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system with no material deficiencies identified. The Board
and the audit committee have considered all material aspects,
including financial, operational and compliance controls,
risk management functions, as well as the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget in the review. The Board and the
audit committee are satisfied that the Group’s internal control
system was effective and there was no significant area of
concern which might affect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The Group will use its best endeavour to implement changes to
further improve the Group’s internal control system whenever
necessary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and extraordinary general
meetings to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board and the Board Committees;
(i) distributing corporate documents and releasing
announcements to disseminate the Group’s latest information
to the shareholders; and (iii) maintaining the Company’s
website to provide an electronic means of communication with
the shareholders and the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B/ AR S

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 42 to 160, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2011, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & AT RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2012

BB 2 BE(7)
ERTHEIERTERBEBZSHRAYH
BERFHCBALBRBEERNEZRIE LR
Fr o AR FF 2 38 58 B BUR D 42 BUAm 2 21 -
B R G B AEF SR R T 8 2R & B S R
RIFEERNBERBL 2B - EFHZE
Rk ZHBMeEEEZ AR A MRE
REBERAARBRIBEAZGEEMBEHRER A
HREEHE - WERGHEE 2 EZEF  MIIF
RURBANMEEZBERERRER BZ
NERFEEEMRAZETRREEE
BREEHEREEAE ULFERA
MBEHR BRI HmT A -

BPEE RMESREREE 2ERER
EERTHEZER 2 AR

=R

BMRE GREVMBRERERE (BEY
BHRELER) BEEQAAMKE FAQF
&k BEEBR-_ZT——F+A=+—H
MR -k EEEREBEEZALSF
EZBAEBRERE WEKRBRES (R F
BHD) 2 HBEHRELERE -

EERETMELAR
BB FECEAD
8 IR
EFTE1098
AFARESE

—E-——-F¥=A=+=H



N

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$ "))

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net loss

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Profit from operations
Finance income

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic (HK$ cents)

Diluted (HK$ cents)

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.
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Z B e

2011 2010
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FExT FAT
1,291,479 698,860
(503,446) (238,495)
788,033 460,365
9,989 22,135
(2,039) (3,619)
(76,810) (38,346)
(469,458) (306,857)
249,715 133,678
67,501 34,493
317,216 168,171
(66,363) (48,449)
250,853 119,722
215,150 74,479
35,703 45,243
250,853 119,722
8.28 4.32
0.89 1.01
ZEVERRE



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in HK$) (BT Z31)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

Available-for-sale financial assets:

net movement in fair value
reserve
Surplus on revaluation of
buildings held for own use
Exchange differences on
translation into presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

BE-—T——F+-A=+—HIFE

Note
Bt &%
REERF

FEEEMEEEE (BRH
BRREFIERE) :
11
AfHHESREE:
NRERBERFER
EfFIFERETZ
A
ABREINEE 2IE
HER

REEZHRSRE

BT AL
ZAN/NETN§E
FEPE R a5

REEZHRGZRE

Z BB n -

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —EF—FF
FExT FAET
250,853 119,722
72 -
130,788 -
31,178 4,202
412,891 123,924
376,371 77,649
36,520 46,275
412,891 123,924

FE50E 1608 2 M 5 T A A 3% 5 B 15 R




“onsolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRE
At 31 December 2011 R-E——#+_-H=+—H
(Expressed in HK$) — (LAETTZ51)

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E—TF
B aE FET FAET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets [ E & E 13 1,351,717 994,397
Intangible assets mEEE 14 492,509 403,199
Goodwill RS 15 1,348,075 1,081,609
Loan receivables e E R 17 805,458 681,174
Deferred tax assets EEFTAE = 28(b) 43,650 30,447
4,041,409 3,190,826
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 103,505 43,488
Available-for-sale financial assets AT EEmMEE 19 66,945 -
Trade and other receivables e UK BR R % L Ath i U 3R 20(a) 282,695 156,992
Prepayment for investment in a PRI E B ARz BT
subsidiary A 20(b) 394,385 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReE MRS EEIER 21 236,012 115,101
1083502 315581
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JiE A<F BR 2k N B Ath B A< 3R 22 1,649,623 1,198,103
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 23(a) 106,300 149,371
Unsecured notes EIEHEE 24 71,658 -
Current taxation RERFE I8 28(a) 82,524 65,231
1,910,105 1,412,705
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (826,563) (1,097,124)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 3,214,846 2,093,702
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank and other loans |ITREME R 23(b) 448,993 216,821
Unsecured notes EEARER 24 - 98,661
Convertible notes AR R & 25 1,123,370 1,275,102
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEEE 28(b) 184,237 97,649
1,756,600 1,688,233
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,458,246 405,469

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial — Z50E 1608 2 M s Jh MK 3% & B 5 &
statements. - v
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBRRE
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——#+_-H=+—H
(Expressed in HK$) (AT Z3)

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —EF—FF
B aE FExT FAET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREE 29
Share capital & 7R 386,811 177,436
Reserves fEE 947,634 134,979

Total equity attributable to equity ZAATRRELESATE

shareholders of the Company 1,334,445 312,415
Non-controlling interests FERER 123,801 93,054
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,458,246 405,469

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on N-E——E=A-t-_OEESTel#tk

22 March 2012. NI T)E -
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin Sha Yingjie
HRRA AR DER
Director Director
EFE o

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial SE50E 1608 2 Mt sk Ty 4 Ak 7% 55 B # e &
statements. =il S v
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B % AR R &R
At 31 December 2011

(Expressed in HK$) — (LAETTZ51)

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables
Unsecured notes

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Unsecured notes
Convertible notes

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

tatement,of Financial Position

RZF——F+-_H=1+—H

ERBEE
RIB AR ZRE

REBEE

H Al R
BeMREEFEER

RBAEE
H A & K
EIKH R

hREBEEFE

HREERARDEE

FRBEE
BRI
AR

EEFH
B A K fek 4
@
feé 178
A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

22 March 2012.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

Director

EF

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.
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2011 2010
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
B it FExT FAT
16 468915 458,629
20(a) 1,757,415 1,682,795
21 442 2,954
1,757,857 1,685,749
22 44,422 463,892
24 71,658 -
116,080 463,892
1,641,777 1,221,857
2,110,692 1,680,486
24 - 98,661
25 1,123,370 1,275,102
1,123,370 1,373,763
987,322 306,723

29
386,811 177,436
600,511 129,287
987,322 306,723

R-E——HF=-A -+ _HEEEaHE

R IR T3 o

Sha Yingjie

Director

EF

FE502160B 2 M sF K Z SR E

Z8b1n -



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-F——F+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z31)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KDNARRER
Property Non-
Share Share Capital Fair value  revaluation Statutory Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 29(c)) ~ (Note 29(d)i) ~ (Note 29(a)i)) ~ (Note 29(c)ii)) ~ (Note 29(div)) ~ (Note 29(d)fv)) ~ (Note 29(a)vi)
3 RHEE BAGE DAERE NEEMRR EERE 2itEE ai  FERER BREE
Tt Tin Ti#n TiEn T T T T T T
fazo))  (Hiazaswin) (Hieasioi)) (Ha2oi) (Mz2ad)) (Hz2dm)
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-B-B5-A-R&H 116,824 385,035 130,400 - - 18,625 14,623 (463,350) 202,157 38,599 240,756
Changes in equity for 2010: “2-ZERELY:
Profit for the year REFRT - - - - - - - 74479 74479 4583 1972
Other comprehensive income Eh2ENE - - - - - - 3170 - 3170 1,032 4,202
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2EUAEE - - - - - - 3170 74479 77,649 46,275 123924
Shares issued on the exercise of warrants 7 ZIREEB TR
(Note 29(c)(i)) (Hi#290)i) 2,000 2,152 (152) - - - - - 4,000 - 4,000
Shares issued under share option scheme FERETEEORR 200 733 (303) - - - - - 630 - 630
Equity-settled share-based transactions TR ZBER S
(Note 26) 26) - - 6,750 - - - - - 6,750 - 6,750
Shares issued on rights issue RERBETRG 58,412 - (1,057) - - - - 1,057 58,412 - 58,412
Effect on equity arising from the WENBARHRE, ¥
acquisitions of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 8,180 8,180
ffect on equity arising from the offsetting  REW & SR AHFEHY
of loan receivable with convertible notes, 3£/ Ep)
the extinguishment and recognition of ~ REEAUREELHE
the convertible notes 2 - - (37.183) - - - - - (37,183) - (37,183)
Appropriation to reserves SRTRE - - - - - 17,765 - (17,765) - - -
Transfer between reserves o HER - - (4.733) - - - - 4733 - - -
Transactions with equity holders of the  EREEREREA LS
Group 60,612 2,885 (36,678) - - 17,765 - (11,975) 32,609 8,180 40,789
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZZ-BE+2R
=t-R&H 177,436 387,920 93,712 - - 36,390 17,793 (400,846) 312415 93,054 405,469
I I B B B D I D D D —
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-E--5-f-REH 177,436 387,920 9312 - - 36,390 17,193 (400,846) 312,415 93,054 405,469
Changes in equity for 2011: Z3--FRERE:
Profit for the year FEFET - - - - - - - 215,150 215,150 35703 250,853
Other comprehensive income Efb2Eks - - - n 130,788 - 30,361 - 161,221 817 162,038
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEF 2HUHES - - - n 130,788 - 30,361 215,150 376,371 36,520 412,891
Shares issued on the exercise of warrants  17EZHEAELARN
(Note 29(c)(i) (W229(c)i) 30,132 32310 (2,181) - - - - - 60,261 - 60,261
Shares issued on the conversion of SRREARG
convertible notes (Note 25(iv)) 179,243 473,525 (85,958) - - - - - 566,810 - 566,810
Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Note 26) - - 11,065 - - - - - 11,065 - 11,065
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests
(Note 31) - - (51,123) - - - - - (51123) (5773) (56,896)
Effect on equity arising from the
redemption of the unsecured notes (Note f
24) - - (11372) - - - - - (113712) - (11,372)
Effect on equity arising from the TERBTTARTEHR
extinguishment and recognition of the EEIYE
convertible notes (Note 25(i) 25(i)) - - 70,018 - - - - - 70,018 - 70,018
Appropriation to reserves - - - - - 2,416 - (22,416) - - -
Transactions with equity holders of the ~ EREERERHAZLS
Group 209,375 505,835 (69,551) - - 2,416 - (22,416) 645,659 (5773) 639,886
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZB--§+Z8
=t-B&H 386,811 893,755 211 n 130,788 58,806 48,154 (208,112) 1,334,445 123,801 1,458,246

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial
statements.
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“onsolidated Cash Flow Statement

REREREX

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE_-ZT——F+_A=+—HIFFE

(Expressed in HK$)  (LAETLZ2)
2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
it aF TER FAT
Operating activities REXEK
Profit before taxation B 758 Bl A 317,216 168,171
Adjustments for: I EE
Depreciation e 6(c), 13 61,573 28,521
Loss on disposal of fixed assets REERTEEEIR 5 2,712 4,550
Interest income FEWA 5 (1,504) (1,286)
Investment income from available- AHHEEREECKRE
for-sale financial assets g 5 (1,032) -
Finance income A 6(a) (67,501) (34,493)
Equity-settled share-based payment HREEEURD XM Z
expenses FIERX 6(b) 11,065 6,750
Changes in working capital: LEEEE:
Increase in inventories FE 2 (34,381) (11,796)
Increase in trade and other JRE U5 B R B EL A FE R 2
receivables 140 (91,121) (19,246)
Decrease in trade and other payables &<t BE 3¢ & EH & - 502
DA 174,083 55,359
Net cash generated from operations RE XK ELEZ FHRE 371,110 196,530
Income tax paid EEMEH 28(a) (63,734) (29,356)
Net cash generated from operating E&EFBHEL ZFRE
activities 307,376 167,174
Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of fixed BEBETEENK
assets (72,912) (557,177)
Prepayment for investment in a KRB AR ZIRE 2 TR
subsidiary I (394,385) -
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets [z & @& & & & AT 15 18 476 411
Repayment of loan receivables BEERE R 1,289 5,885
Payment for the purchase of available- 8% A]fft £ & 4 g & E MK
for-sale financial assets (103,854) -
Proceeds from the sale of available-for- & /] {t {! & 4 @ & E P15
sale financial assets FIE 131,778 -
Payment for acquisitions of W B BT B8 2 B 3k FABRER
subsidiaries, net of cash acquired U ig 7 4 30 (218,687) (342,347)
Payment of transaction costs in WEEHT B R Rl 2 X ST
connection with the acquisitions of =
subsidiaries (8,520) (21,615)
Interest received 2 WFE 1,504 1,286
Net cash used in investing activities REFEFE A ZFHE (663,311) (913,557)

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE_-T——F+ _HA=+—HIFFE
(Expressed in HK$) (BT Z31)

2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
Kt &t FExT FAT
Financing activities A& E
Proceeds from new bank loans ML ITE TS RE 519,073 37,929
Payment of transaction costs in it fETTE,AZX%&K
connection with new bank loans (NN (18,421) -
Repayment of bank and other loans  EiZ#R1T R E M E 3 (330,132) (177,052)
Proceeds from the issue BT MR BB TS 5KIB
of convertible notes 25 443,500 887,000
Payment for redemption of unsecured & [B] f $# # 2= 3% < 7X
notes 24 (54,300) -
Proceeds from rights issue AR P15 518 - 42,544
Proceeds from the exercise 1T{E R AR aifﬁfr??rf‘x
of warrants, net of transaction costs 1 %2 5k Z< 29(c)(ii) 60,261 4,000
Proceeds from the exercise 1T AR AT 15 IR
of share options - 630
Increase in restricted cash at bank ER1TXPRIR &3 00 21 (116,279) -
Payment for the acquisitions of non- W B FE 58 A% #E 25 1~ 3¢
controlling interests 31 (56,896) -
Other finance costs paid HeE B ER (94,192) (24,989)
Net cash generated from financing BMEFEBELZ2FHE
activities 352,614 770,062
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ Bz#
and cash equivalents W), (3,321) 23,679
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzRERRLE
at 1 January ERER=! 21 115,101 88,505
Effect of foreign exchange rate NIEHBREBE 2
changes 7,953 2,917
Cash and cash equivalents RtTZA=+—HzHER
at 31 December REEEEE 21 119,733 115,101

The notes on pages 50 to 160 form part of these financial — ZE50F 1608 ~ M sF JhE K % E 8 K&
statements. v
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otes to the financial statements

B 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of
the Group are the operation of department stores in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

TESTBER (8)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(b) MBHBREHEE

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for derivative financial instruments (see Note
2(e)), financial assets classified as available-for-sale
(see Note 2(f)) and leasehold land and buildings (see
Note 2(g)) which are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 39.

HEe—_2—F+=-A=+—H
FEEZHEAPBRRBET AN
£H-

BRIRAREZIZITEERTA
(RKtEE2(e)) - FEA/AIHEE
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RFtBE%E.
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otes to the financial statements

B 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

statements (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net
current liabilities of HK$826,563,000. This condition
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, that the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. These financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the
Group at 31 December 2011 because the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that based
on a cash flow forecast of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2012, the Group would have
adequate funds to meet liabilities as and when they
fall due at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider it is appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESIEE (&)
(continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests () MEBELARAIRFERER (&)

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those equity interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those equity interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
jointly controlled entity.
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B %5 R R Y &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2(j)(i)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Derivative financial instruments

(f)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially, and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Fair values of exchange traded derivative
are obtained from quoted market price. Fair values
of over-the-counter derivatives are obtained using
valuation techniques, including discounted cash
flow model and option pricing model. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised in
the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments may be embedded
in other financial instruments, for example,
convertible notes (see Note 2(m)) with an embedded
conversion option. Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely
related to those of the host contract; the terms of
the embedded derivatives would meet the definition
of a stand-alone derivative if they are contained
in a separate contract; and the combined contract
is not held for trading or designated at fair value.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes therein recognised in the income
statement.

Derivative financial instruments are classified
as assets when their fair value is positive, or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different
transactions are only offset if the transactions are
with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset
exists, and the parties intend to settle the cash flows
on a net basis.

Investments in available-for-sale financial
assets

Investments other than investments in subsidiaries
are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Investments in available-for-sale financial
assets (continued)

Investments which do not fall into the categories
of investments in securities held for trading and
held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale
investments. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve. Where these investments
are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(u)(v). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(j)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
the income statement.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings held for own use are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 75 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

TESTBER (8)

(g) Fixed assets (continued)

(9) BIE&EE (#&)

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the reserve
in respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to the income statement to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to the
income statement.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of fixed assets
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the income statement on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to
the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Estimated useful lives

Leasehold land and buildings Over the unexpired

term of lease

Leasehold improvements 3-35 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-35 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(j)ii)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Annual Report 2011

2

(BRI=BEHEE BRILETZ)

TESTBER (8)

(9)

(h)

BEEE (&)
WEDNRETEEHE ZKA
G E R E A At R R EE (1
B) NEMGFERAFHRAE
ARORMEEIN T -

et EAES

AETHMRETF KER
HAEHR

HEMEEE 3E354F
Bl REREE 3%35%
EHTA 4Z10%F

EETEEENSINETRA
ERFER - AZEERRARE
BERESEEED NS ML
BRI RNE -BEZAIERF
HLERGREERE(MAB)HES
FEITRE

TERERTIRETHEREH
BT R EEBE ik e

BEEE(TEREBSE)
REBW IR 2 B EERKA
R A # I (S FHERF S
RERY) FoRERE (RHE
2(j)(ii) ) ©

i B J B B 2 R A BT E
AERY AN ST
APTE B BB 2 P R HIN
RE RleSFEMUNEEEE
ERIEHREREE T FFZIRE
FE RO IR A] £ A R 2 o (W 0 SR AT
R FEFRIBER - A A F 3
AT B R HIEE S A IR A - A
KB & 8 B MEIRLRIEEE
ZEFT R ERFERRE SR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FTESHBE (&)
(continued)
(i) Leased assets (i) HEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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(i) Classification of assets leased to the (i) FXEERHEZEEZSE
Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases REBBREHEEESE
which transfer to the Group substantially E MEBTBEELESZ
all the risks and rewards of ownership are BEZ®KIMER RE
classified as being held under finance leases. RETAER FEEE
Leases which do not transfer substantially all SR AREREREEE
the risks and rewards of ownership to the ZEE-MIAEBEHEESE
Group are classified as operating leases. B2 @8 KEb M E b K E
EYASE2HEE A
HRAKENE-
(i) Operating lease charges (i) BREHEEH

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGTEE#)
(continued)
(j) Impairment of assets () EERE
(i) Impairment of investments in available- (i) AHRHELHEERKAK
for-sale financial assets and equity BERELUREWFIER
securities and receivables =l

Investments in equity securities and non-
current and current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective SoUEBTEE HIREE
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence MNEBIE - BRENTSH
of impairment includes observable data that FiEBREANERTE DA
comes to the attention of the Group about T—ExZEEREEEY
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, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

reorganisation;

significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Bt 75 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in available-
for-sale financial assets and equity
securities and receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with Note
2(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
Note 2(j)(ii).

- For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
the income statement. The amount of
the cumulative loss that is recognised in
the income statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the
income statement in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed
in the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGTEE#)
(continued)
(j). Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of investments in available- () TEHHESBEERRK
for-sale financial assets and equity BEREUR EWFIER
securities and receivables (continued) ERE=D)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the
income statement.

For non-current and current receivables
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGTEE(#)
(continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE (&)
(i) Impairment of investments in available- () THHESBEERRKRK
for-sale financial assets and equity EERELIN EWSIE R
securities and receivables (continued) 8 (&)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the income statement.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of receivable whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
the income statement.

i BB & 1B 2 = BN
FRARBM D A
BAR A A BB b
AR EBREEEZ
SHEBE: ARE
&5 18 435 18 Wl 2 R 93
@] - % [B] 5L {5 &5 18
FESI BB E ZIRE
BERRBEAEFE
I 45 R RR R (B S 1R B
RIEETE < 88 -

MEBEERZEHEERE
EERKRRRSRER
BREEE I TBE &
Wk 2 B ERORE B 1R R
She FEBIBER T REEZ
B (B B 18 R B R AR A 8%
EAKBEERKREKE Y
WA S ERRE NS
B E & EE BT
= RNIDR=SCIRIWANG c: 3 -
WERARN BRI
[E - B & & W E 2 pl 2 &
BERHPHANERE A
SHEBBRTED B&E
Az Efb e M ERK
EBlzA 2 BEEMENEER
R R AR -

HESRHEERERAT | =



otes to the financial statements

B 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  fixed assets (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts),

- intangible assets; and
- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
the recoverable amount for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to the income statement
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

2

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on

prevailing market conditions.

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

V)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(j)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (Note 2(j)(i)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Convertible notes

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component

Convertible notes that can be converted
to equity share capital at the option of the
holder, where the number of shares that
would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received
at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain
a liability component, an equity component,
and a derivative component, where applicable.

At initial recognition, the liability component
of the convertible notes is measured as the
present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not
have a conversion option, and the derivative
component of the convertible notes, if any,
is measured at fair value (see Note 2(e)). Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component and
the derivative component, where applicable,
is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated
to the liability, derivative (where applicable)
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The derivative component (if any) is
subsequently remeasured in accordance
with Note 2(e). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The
interest expense recognised in the income
statement on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.
The equity component is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Convertible notes (continued)

2
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Convertible notes which do not contain
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At initial recognition the derivative component
of the convertible notes is measured at fair
value (see Note 2(e)). Any excess of proceeds
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derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs that
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liability component is subsequently carried
at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in the income statement on the
liability component is calculated using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Convertible notes (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(ii) Other convertible notes (continued)

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts
of the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, any difference between
the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in the income
statement.

Warrants

The issue of warrants will be settled by the
exchange of fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Company's own equity instruments.
When the warrants are subscribed, the fair value of
the consideration received is recognised in capital
reserve.

The fair value of the warrant is recognised in capital
reserve until either the warrant is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the warrant expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the income statement for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

(s) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

‘ settle the liability simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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otes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
income statement as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales are
recognised when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue or net income excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
No revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management
involvement with the goods.

Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation of
department stores and supermarkets is
recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the income statement
in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(iv) Customer loyalty programme

The Group’'s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle
the customers to the right to exchange
for products offered under the customer
loyalty programme. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the
programme credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the
programme credits is estimated by reference
to the fair value of the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme, adjusted to take into account
the expected forfeiture rate. Such amount
is deferred and revenue is recognised when
the programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(

) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.
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Notes to the financial statements
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGTEE(#)
(continued)
(x) Related parties (continued) (x) BAEAL (&

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture iy BRES—EBEZH
of the other entity (or an associate or ERNAHBEEDE
joint venture of a member of a group of (BT —BEMEE
which the other entity is a member). BRE QAR ZHE R

(i)  One entity is a joint venture of a third (i) BREAF=BEZA
entity and the other entity is an associate EXBS—EEAR
of the third entity. F-EBIBER

o

(iv) The entity is a post-employment benefit (ivy BEAAEESEHR
plan for the benefit of employees of NEBEMZERE
either the Group or an entity related to BEXRIEZERZEF
the Group. FEZREA

(vy  The entity is controlled or jointly ) EREHE@MATAL
controlled by a person identified in (a). PRI sk LR o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant i) B@OFTFRET AT
influence over the entity or is a member ERBEEEATES
of the key management personnel of the B ERE(NZER
entity (or of a parent of the entity). BRARZEFEER

R B o
Close members of the family of a person are those BRI AL Z M FHKRER B Thi67%
family members who may be expected to influence, HEKEEENARIRZ SR e
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings B E 7 HBKE -
with the entity.

(y) Segment reporting (y) 7H®RE

Operating segments, and the amounts of AR BRI N 2R &
each segment item reported in the financial SEIBE 2 EEH THRME Y
statements, are identified from the financial ZK%.E’%?TB(E@AEU\VE,@
information provided regularly to the Group’s BN REARNEEH Y BIFER
most senior executive management for the KM@ D R T A T 2 B 7
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing BRI SRR o

the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group's turnover is substantially derived from
retail customers situated in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
North-western region of the PRC. Accordingly, no
segment analysis based on geographical location of
the customers and assets is provided.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

. HK(IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group's financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction.

The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of
a related party. As a result, the Group has re-
assessed the identification of related parties and
concluded that the revised definition does not have
any material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous periods.
HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-related
entities. This does not impact the Group because
the Group is not a government-related entity.

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group’s financial instruments in Note 32 have been
conformed to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material impact
on the classification, recognition and measurements
of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements in the current and previous periods.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Turnover

4. EXBERIBRE
(a) &%

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores and supermarkets in
the PRC.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold
to customers (net of value added tax or other sales
tax and discounts), net income from concession
sales, rental income from operating leases and
management service fee income. The amount of
each significant category of revenue and net income
recognised during the year is analysed as follows:

AEE 2 TREBREETHLE
BERRNEH -

EXRBRATFEL ZEMAE
BE (ARG EH K EMBHEDN

Sales of goods
Net income from concession sales

Rental income from operating leases

Management service fee income

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

The Group engages in the retail business,
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s customer base is diversified and
has no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$Nil). Details
of concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
32(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising
from the sales of goods and concession sales
charged to retail customers, and rental income
from operating leases and management service fee
income charged to tenants, net of value added tax
or other sales tax and discounts.

U B Hrn) %:ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ%;ﬂ&z
A REKEHE 2 HEWAR
BIBRIS B UL A o R E A - B
R EEBREER R BFWA S

BT :
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E——F T —TF
FHET FBIT
& o iH B 500,719 249,556
*H?FEE%%)%%U\ 690,745 402,904
XQ%« TS 2 e WA 59,041 33,680
BEERBSEWA 40,974 12,720
1,291,479 698,860
AREBRETEER Eith K

RAIBERAE AEEBZEPH
ZiEb T EEFPHEALER Y
REBEBAREERBE_Z
——i+:ﬂz+—a¢¢ﬁ§*%
EE10% (ZE—ZTF : TH
) BBEEFREERBZFS
KT EE32(a) ©

HERZEHZEH

Ul EmEEERm AT
PSR EEHEE Z<<<%Tﬂ‘*2
M2 WA REPYEL &2
RIEEWA 2 858 (RIZETD
Sk HE M IHE R M ITE) o

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——F —E-TF

FExT FAET

Sales of goods 5% B o 500,719 249,556
Gross revenue from concession sales JEEFEEIEE 2 B ILZE 4,130,120 2,305,935
Rental income from operating leases 4 & E & WA 59,041 33,680
Management service fee income ERREERA 40,974 12,720
4,730,854 2,601,891
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

4. ERFRIBME (4

(continued)

(a) Turnover (continued) () EXFE (&)
Further details regarding the Group's principal HAEEFEXERERE—F
activities are disclosed below: HBEELT

(b) Segment reporting (b) ZHEBEE

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores: this segment comprises 8
department store operations.

Supermarkets: this segment comprises 6
supermarket operations.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
and net income generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

AEEFBEGRUEEELX
e EIR DB KRB
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2 BB E D BE GTABAK
AT A s 080 -

o BAMBG D EEEN
REBRHHER -

(i) #EHEH
S D BB AT 4 0 BBR IR
kol ERME  N&EE
ZEREREERX AN
mEDBEEERE H
HEEMT

Yook T B % 5 B AT s
SE HEREED WA
FENETY TN 1 1Y
MEDMHELN T A
M 5 % 2 R AT 4R 44 % 48
SRS




otes to the financial statements

B 75 R R Y &
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4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is "adjusted EBITDA" i.e. "adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, investment income
and other financial charges and income, and
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 is set out below.
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIF B B8 - & AILAE T ZE 7))

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, BEERDIHE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEFHME (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) 7HEH(E)
2011
—E——F
Department
stores Supermarkets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEAT BT S &t
FTERT THET THERT
Revenue from external SN REF 2 ZH K
customers and AT ¥R E o Bh M
reportable segment
revenue 1,151,516 139,963 1,291,479
Reportable segment profit A] k& 5 80 ) (4%
(adjusted EBITDA) I EEBITDA) 392,708 4,996 397,704
2010
—ZET-FF
Department
stores
HK$'000
BERQTA
FHET
Revenue from external 4NREF 2 Iz K
customers and BEEE &
reportable segment
revenue 698,860
Reportable segment profit ARk & 7 80 ) (4L
(adjusted EBITDA) FZEEBITDA) 223,978

HESTHEEERERAT
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (ErFES BIE8H - & BIIAE T 27%)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. EEBERDPBHRE (£)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEFHME (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment (ii) A&7 56 F ¥R
profit
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E—FF
FHET FHETT
Reportable segment profit EE: Sy vl 397,704 223,978
Other revenue H bz 2,536 1,286
Other net loss HEE R (2,712) (4,550)
Depreciation e (61,573) (28,521)
Finance income B A 67,501 34,493
Unallocated head office and AOBERER
corporate administration R ARIITERA X
expenses (86,240) (58,515)
Profit before taxation I i Bl v ) 317,216 168,171
5 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 5. HttlsEREEFHE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——fF —E-FF
FHET FETT
Other revenue H fth g 2=
Non-redemption of credits under customer #EZFFEEF L /E T2
loyalty programme HTIZED - 15,347
Interest income FEMA 1,504 1,286
Investment income from available-for-sale AT ESRMEEZIFE
financial assets (Note 11(b)) Wz (KaE11(b)) 1,032 -
Others Hib 7,453 5,502
9,989 22,135
Other net loss Hi g5 e 55
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets REBTEEBETE (2,712) (4,550)
Net income from the sale of food and KERBEERAAKHEERY
beverages in department stores KRk WA F 58 673 931
(2,039) (3,619)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]



Notes to the financial statements

Bt %5 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 FRBAER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEEDREME MG (5 A) -
(crediting):
(a) Finance income: (a) BAFEW A :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-—-F —ZT-ZF
TER FHET
Interest expenses on bank MITRAMER Z M EZH
and other loans 38,573 19,119
Finance charges on unsecured BERERRAIBRRERZ
and convertible notes B 7% S 175,417 95,861
Bank charges and other finance costs R778 A & H b 81 75 & /A 13,074 7,748
Total borrowing costs BEERAR 227,064 122,728
Finance income on loan receivables  fEURE 3K 2 BF &5 Ua A (88,706) (126,986)
Changes in fair value on the derivative A28 Z & 2 5T A 2D A
components of convertible notes BEEH) (205,859) (34,319)
Net loss on redemption of convertible & [0l 7] #2 J% =% ~ F 18 5 58
notes - 4,084
(67,501) (34,493)
No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the BEEENKAREZE T —F+=
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$Nil). A=+t—RLEFEERNM(ZE—F
FoIE) -
(b) Staff costs: (b) BT HA:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E—FF
TER FHET
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TENEMER 135,550 82,554
Contributions to defined contribution [A]7E 58t FUR R =t &l 30
retirement plans 9,431 5,910
Equity-settled share-based payment 2% # 45 & LA B 1) 32 1+F
expenses (Note 26) 2z (KfiE26) 11,065 6,750
156,046 95,214

HESREEERERAT | =
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

otes to the financial statements

(BRIE=BHEE BRILETZ)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 PFRBAER (8)
(b) Staff costs: (continued) (b) EIRRAK: (&)
The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group A EE B P BB S 2 I A A
established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) ([FEMBAR)ZEESH
participate in defined contribution retirement MAHRAREBERE 2 TREHEX
benefit schemes managed by the local government RIKEHNETE B EME A
authorities, whereby the PRC subsidiaries are RIBEBRREEELRE 2 220%M
required to contribute to the schemes at 20% of ZEET BB o BRI, _E R KRG
the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of the 2 PRI E N FE B RN EBUE
PRC subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits, BIRIKF B A fE R R RET
calculated based on a percentage of the average =B RFPRFEEFHFEKRKFEFED
salaries level in the PRC, from the above mentioned LbEt B Z R RRE A o
retirement schemes at their normal retirement age.
The employees of the Company who situated in ARGz ERREITHE ([&
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong BlEEZERNERESS
Kong”) participate in the Mandatory Provident 2 H AN A FIBEIRE B B
Fund Scheme, whereby the Company is required to B Z5%ma%at e
contribute to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
basic salaries.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of BREL Bt RN - AR E
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual MESEMRABNNRZE
contributions. To
(c) Other items: (0 HER:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FTER FHETT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELRD B &
— annual audit service —FEZERE 3,895 2,039
— audit service in connection with — BB KT B A B 2 2 BUR
acquisitions of subsidiaries 4,258 2,070
Depreciation (Note 13) & (Kat13) 61,573 28,521
Reversal of impairment losses on trade J& U B % & £ b & W ZURUE
and other receivables (Note 20(a)(ii))  Es3&%[al (Kt zE20(a) i) ) (2,850) -
Operating lease charges in respect of: HRN F&EZ &%
HEER:
- buildings 146,718 115,619
— motor vehicles 1,737 1,655
— contingent rentals on property - MEHEZHAES
rentals 2,956 2,816
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE 5 1 R 236 255
Cost of inventories sold (Note 18) BEFERA (M:L18) 397,294 191,739

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Annual Report 2011




Notes to the financial statements

B %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFEHIE8H  & I E T ZE 7))

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEWRBRAMBH
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) mAEWBRAZBEE:
statement represents:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
FExT FAET
Current tax (Note 28(a)): AEAREIE (ff7228(@a)) -
— Provision for PRC income tax — & A FTAS R
for the year 79,001 50,658
— Withholding income tax on —BAAREE—HEF M
dividends paid by a PRC BARRNKREZTE
subsidiary of the Group MFTEH - 1,548
— (Over-)/under-provision in respect —BEEE (BRERE)
of prior years BETE (3.626) 853
75,375 53,059
Deferred taxation (Note 28(b)): EERLIE (f17728(b)) -
— Origination and reversal of - ERUEERZESL
temporary differences K E (9,012) (4,610)
66,363 48,449
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAREAHT2HEIZHER
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: gEMmT:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ET-TF
FExT FHE T
Profit before taxation & 5 A v ) 317,216 168,171
Expected tax on profit before tax, BrFiRT R A 2 TAEARITE - 4%
calculated at the rates applicable AR E e A ERIES R
to profits in the tax jurisdictions @AM ERTE
concerned (Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (BEaEG) ~ (i) % (i) ) 74,692
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ a] 13 37 2 1 7 57 28 2,431
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBRBAZTR G E (20,777)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AEDRREARBEERZH
recognised B2 13,643
Withholding income tax on dividends 7 & > /b ER [ B A &) AT s
paid by a PRC subsidiary of the R B Z FEHATEH
Group -
(Over-)/under-provision in respect of B FEE (FRRERME) B
prior years BT R (3.626)
Income tax P18 %5t 66,363




otes to the financial statements

B %5 R & Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made, as the Company and the subsidiaries of the
Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not have
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$Nil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to

PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 15% to 25%).

Annual Report 2011
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(BRIE=BHEE BRILETZ)

mEWBERAMES (&)

(b) BERABRAHZREAIHRK
MM (&)

EE

()

(ii)

(iii)

AR R RAEEREE T
MRZzHMBRARABE-Z
——F+tZRA=FT—HUIFE
WRAHMNEENESHZE
whad (-5 TF
TT) AR EF AT EHAE
B -

ARRBRAEENRPE (B
FHE ) AN SR A Lz Bt
BRRREES A ELME
R ZER ROE R BABMER
FR{S M

BE-Z——Ft+tZA=1—
BILFE  AEEZhEH B
RERBHHE R EMRS B
ER25% (ZT—FF:15%
E25%) °
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B %5 R R Y RE

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B85 & BIAE T ZE51)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section RIEEE CRREH) E161{EHE R

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as ZEEEHMINT
follows:
2011
—B--F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(Note (1)
He 2N
RE#EN BARE5HE

-E20k BR  BRRA H% NE RBAR @t
FTER FTER FTER FER FER FER FTER

(Hi#()
Executive directors ~ H{TEZE
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei W ELE 5 - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, BRREE
Edwin 1,500 448 2,500 12 4,460 348 4,808
Mr. Qu Jiagi BRALE 108 552 1,410 25 2,095 348 2,443
Mr. Sha Yingjie DEAEL % 433 836 2 1,390 261 1,651
Non-executive directors ##1TEE
Mr. Wu Yijian R-BEE
(Appointed on 7 (R=%
January 2011) ——&—f
tBEZ
ff) 1,181 69 - 12 1,262 521 1,783
Mr. Chen Shuai BREn k4 5 - - _ 5 _ 5
Independent non-  BUFH{TEE
executive directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, BRA¥ %4
Peter 96 - - - 9% - 9%

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, — B2E %4
Ewing (Resigned (A%

on 27 September ——ENA
2011) “t+HE
ff) 7 - - - n
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LB 4% 4 9 - - - 9
Ms. Li Ling BT (R
(Appointed on 7 “E——F%
January 2011) —AtBE
£f) 94 - - - 94

3,253 1,502 4,746 74 9,575

HESREEZERERAT |
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8 ESHM (&)
2010
—T-%%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total  payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note (;)
Fe e
REMEY BReitE
2k BN BEEL =% N REARER @it
FET TET TET FET FET FET FET
(Hiz()
Executive directors ~ H{TEE
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei @
(Appointed on 3 (R=%—
December 2010) ZE+-R
ZAkE
) - - - - - - -
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, BREAEE
Edwin (Appointed on (R =Z—
8 March 2010) EE=ZAN
BEZI) - 1,218 3,000 10 4,228 377 4,605
Mr. Qu Jiagi BRELE - 385 1,094 23 1,502 382 1,884
Mr. Sha Yingjie DEAEE - 316 722 23 1,061 306 1,367
Mr. Hu Yangxiong HEELE
(Resigned on 8 March (R =F—
2010) TEZAN
HEHT) - 283 - 3 286 7 293
Mr. Li Haogang ERELE
(Resigned on 3 (R=F—
December 2010) 2F+-A
ZHEI) - 329 823 23 1,175 352 1,527
Ms. Lu Xiaoling BERLT
(Resigned on 3 (R=ZE—
December 2010) E
= AEE) - 228 - 31 259 - 259
Non-executive director ##TEE
Mr. Chen Shuai REVEAE (B
(Appointed on 3 —Z-%F
December 2010) +-A=H
EZRT) - - - - - _ _
Independent non-  BUFHTEE
executive directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, BRA% %4
Peter 9% - - - 9 - 9
Mr. FuWing Kwok, — B&E%4E
Ewing 96 - - - 9 - 9
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BELE % - - - 9% - 9%
288 2,759 5,639 113 8,799 1,424 10,223

~. Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEHM &)

There were no amounts paid during the year to the AEERFANERAESZNEME

directors in connection with their retirement from 128 167 5 3R UK ok B B 4 1 =k o A By 22 D

employment or compensation for loss of office with the ZRE-FANRMEEHEXREN

Group, or inducement to join. There was no arrangement EEAMe T

under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

Note (i):  These represent the estimated value of share options Hizt@) . ZESBEBBEANTERE
granted to the directors under the Company’s share FrEIR TES 2 IBRE 2 AE
option scheme. The value of these share options BE ZEBEREZEEZR
is measured according to the Group’s accounting BB B R T2 ()% 15
policies for share-based payment transactions as set NRZGZEFHERAE B
out in Note 2(r)(ii). The details of these benefits in FALEEMRINZFS B8
kind, including the principal terms and number of FEBRREETZERES
options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph B EREFgREZER
“Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and REETE ] —ER MM FE26 4 55 -
Note 26.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EBEHAL

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, EREgEsHATH =2 (ZE—

three (2010: four) are directors whose emoluments are EEOZ )V AES MENS S

disclosed in Note 8. B M EE8HR R -

The emoluments in respect of the other two (2010: one) BBREMME (—ZE—FF: —%) A

individuals are as follows: ToMeRBELT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
FERT FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R RHEMEYER 687 407

Discretionary bonuses Y IEIEAT 2,081 842

Retirement scheme contributions RIKEE BN 25 26

Share-based payments AR 19 -7 3K 1,338 302

4,131 1,577

No emoluments were paid or payable to these employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

FRLERZFREE N HE T
S - (EREMAIRIMANEKE
By 2 BERN SRR BB A (5
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI=BHEE BRILETZ)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 BREHFAL(E)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments of the two (2010: one) individuals who ME(—TE—FF . —Z)WIFES
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest paid BEBRAEERAZ &S H AL 2R
individuals of the Group are within the following bands: AT ZHFMNTFIATEHE
2011 2010
Number of Number of
HK$E& T individuals individual
—E——F —E-EF
18 B A 2L (ERIPN
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 -
10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 AATREES 2R
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity AARIBRREGZHEEENBRE
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of 16,183,000 T2 BB (ZE—F
HK$16,183,000 (2010: loss of HK$93,192,000) which F :§53893,192,0008 ) 2 RN
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the ARARZWBERERANERE (R MHME
Company (see Note 29(a)). 29(@a)) °
11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 Hie2mEk =
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of () EHM2EWERHOERZ
other comprehensive income RETE
2011 2010
—E-—-§ —T-%F
Before and
Before Net-of- net-of-
tax Tax tax tax
amount expense amount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Note 28(b)
BRBE A nkHE MERHE
8 HIEMY 8 &8
TERT TER TERT TETL
fi1:#28(b)
Available-for-sale financial assets: At HESBMEE
net movement in fair MREREEYTE
value reserve 96 (24) 72 -
Surplus on revaluation of buildings Ef#EE AEF 2 B#
held for own use (Note 13) (Kfez13) 174,384 (43,596) 130,788 -
Exchange differences on translation & 52 REE 2
into presentation currency ERER 31,178 - 31,178 4,202
Other comprehensive income Hib2m K 205,658 (43,620) 162,038 4,202

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

(b) Components of other comprehensive income,

including reclassification adjustments

Available-for-sale financial assets:
Changes in fair value recognised during the
year
Reclassification adjustments for amounts
transferred to consolidated income
statement:
— gain on sale (Note 5)
Net deferred tax charged to other
comprehensive income (Note 28(b))

Net movement in the fair value reserve during
the year recognised in other comprehensive
income

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

(BRIF=EER BRILETZS)

11 Ef2EWE (&)

(b) HitZHEWEIG BEEH

THEAR
2011
HK$'000
—E——F
FET
AEHESREE:
FRAERARANREH
1,128
EFDEABREAGEKRTIRZ
cat-C I
—HE mm%l(M7af5) (1,032)
AR TR 2 BRI IE 58
(KtzE28(b)) (24)
imﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ '''''' BFENEME
R SRR
72
12 BRER

(a) BREXEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$215,150,000
(2010: HK$74,479,000) and the weighted

BRERBFZEIBEARDFKRE
JE {5 % %/215,150,0005 7T ( —
T —Z4F 74,479,000/ T) &
FANDBETRMD 2 INEFITE

average of 2,597,525,000 ordinary shares (2010:
1,724,709,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the

year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at
1 January

Effect of rights issue

Effect of conversion of convertible
notes (Note 25(iv))

Effect of warrants exercised
(Note 29(c)(ii))

Effect of share options exercised

Weighted average number of ordinary W+ - A=+—H 2 E @B

shares at 31 December

2,597,525,000/% L@AL (==
——iifﬁ 1,724,709,0000% & i@
fE)ETE T
ZERMEFLSE
2011 2010
000 ‘000
—E——F —E—FF
TR T B
R—A—BZEBTLAK
1,774,361 1,168,241
Hik 2 & - 552,714
EMA B ER 2
(HtzE25(v)) 699,638 -
BT ERREEZZE
(Bt aE29(c)ii)) 123,526 3,699
BETEBEREZZE - 55
hniEF 19 & 2,597,525 1,724,709

HESTHEEERERAT

—g——FEH
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 SRER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREBERER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share BERESERMNEMEEARARD
is based on the profit attributable to equity f% % P& 1k & 764,346, 000/%
shareholders of the Company of HK$64,346,000 7T (ZZF—F%:38,055,000
(2010: HK$38,055,000) and the weighted average BIT) R E R NETF B
number of 7,246,619,000 ordinary shares (2010: 7,246,619,000% (=& — =
3,773,974,000 ordinary shares), calculated as % :3,773,974,0000% ) 5 & 40
follows: T
(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity (i) ZFLRAEBRRRENLZ
shareholders of the Company (diluted) F (#F)
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZTF
FET FAET
Profit attributable to ordinary T AR I R FE A i A
equity shareholders 215,150 74,479
After tax effect of effective interestr] # iR ZiE B E 2O TR
on the liability components of BZBRTiETE
convertible notes 105,404 88,272
After tax effect of changes in ?fi N EIE 2 574 210 T
fair value recognised on the RZANBEEE 2 RTE
derivative components of T
convertible notes (256,208) (124,696)
Profit attributable to ordinary 3B AR IR 3R E R Vi
equity shareholders (diluted) (#5%) 64,346 38,055
(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary (i) ZERIMEFYE (#
shares (diluted) &)
2011 2010
‘000 ‘000
—E——F —E-TF
T T i
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HzZz L@
ordinary shares at 31 December & F 15 &% 2,597,525 1,724,709
Effect of conversion ERABRRER 8
of convertible notes 4,505,311 1,915,026
Effect of deemed issue of shares 18 &7T{F R BB 21T R
on the exercise of warrants mZEE 124,836 131,145
Effect of deemed issue of shares 18 BiRIEA A F1EE AT £
under the Company’s share BTl < &
option scheme 18,947 3,094
Weighted average number of RtZA=+t—HBZEBK
ordinary shares (diluted) at ke E 8 (e )
31 December 7,246,619 3,773,974

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIES B 1580

ERILETZ7)

13 FIXED ASSETS 13 BEEE
The Group RE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HELH HENE KA HE
REF £ &L RE REIR G
TET TET FTiET TET TET TiET
Cost: R
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE—ZF
—A—H - 137,688 45,169 6,210 3,901 192,968
Exchange adjustments & i 5% - 6,154 3,939 318 308 10,719
Additions through ERRENEAA
acquisitions of IRE
subsidiaries - 66,213 7,123 785 - 74,121
Additions NE 746,491 21,411 9,982 4,736 12,531 795,151
Transfer in/(out) BgA/ (1) - 4,330 - - (4,330) -
Disposals RE - (4,840) (4,115) (2,175) - (11,130)
At 31 December 2010 R=Z—-ZF
+=ZHA=+-H 746,491 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 1,061,829
Representing: i
Cost XA - 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 315,338
Valuation - 2010 BE-ZF—TF 746,491 - - - - 746,491
746,491 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 1,061,829
Accumulated 2iiE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZF
—A—H - 26,449 11,305 521 - 38,275
Exchange adjustments [ i, 32 - 1,680 1,968 9% - 3,744
Additions through FRWENBAR
acquisitions of IARE
subsidiaries - 2,320 715 26 - 3,061
Charge for the year ~ FEHE 1,417 18,158 6,120 2,826 - 28,521
Written back on B E RO
disposals - (2,362) (2,202) (1,605) - (6,169)
At 31 December 2010 R=ZE—Z %
+=A=+-H 1,417 46,245 17,906 1,864 - 67,432
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 RA=ZF -
+=A=1+-H 745,074 184,711 44,192 8,010 12,410 994,397

HESREEERERAT | =
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

otes to the financial statements

(BRIE=BHEE BRILETZ)

13 BEEEE (&)

The Group (continued) REH (EF)
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HELH HENE HHHE
REF £ &L "E KEEIE CE
FHT FET TEL THT FET FHT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F
—H—H 746,491 230,956 62,098 9,874 12,410 1,061,829
Exchange adjustments [ 3, ;8% 44,164 14,376 5813 564 814 65,731
Additions through & BUEEN B A A

acquisition of ZRNE

subsidiaries (Note 30)  ( ff7£30) 104,401 39,679 19,085 1,227 - 164,392
Additions NE - 40,212 6,083 - 22,239 68,534
Transfer in/(out) A/ (H) - 12,910 - - (12,910) -
Disposals RE - (3,544) (7,107) (1,592) - (12,243)
Surplus on revaluation & ff & 8

(Note 11(a)) (BaE11(a) 174,384 - - - - 174,384
Less: elimination of ¥ - EIE 2 E

accumulated
depreciation (24,663) - - - - (24,663)
At 31 December 2011 R=ZF——%
+ZRA=+t—-H 1,044,777 334,589 85,972 10,073 22,553 1,497,964
Representing: &
Cost D@ - 334,589 85,972 10,073 22,553 453,187
Valuation - 2011 fE-—Z—F 1,044,777 - - - - 1,044,777
1,044,777 334,589 85,972 10,073 22,553 1,497,964
Accumulated 2iiE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F
—A—H 1,417 46,245 17,906 1,864 - 67,432
Exchange adjustments [& 5, 5§ % 546 4,914 3,126 335 - 8,921
Additions through BRRERELR

acquisition of ZNE

subsidiaries (Hz30)

(Note 30) - 26,686 12,557 1,022 40,265
Charge for the year ~ FEE 22,700 28,729 7,561 2,583 61,573
Written back on B & B

disposals - (2,477) (4,681) (123) - (7,281)
Elimination on WHER

revaluation (24,663) - - - - (24,663)
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——%

+=ZA=+-AH - 104,097 36,469 5,681 - 146,247
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R=2——%

+ZA=+—-8 1,044,777 230,492 49,503 4,392 22,553 1,351,717

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13

FIXED ASSETS (continued)
Revaluation of leasehold land and buildings

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings for own use
carried at fair value were revalued on 31 December
2011 based on direct comparison method by reference
to recent market transactions in comparable properties.
The valuations were carried out by a qualified surveyor
who is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The revaluation
surplus, net of tax, of HK$130,788,000 has been
recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and accumulated in the
property revaluation reserve of the Group.

(BrIF=EHEH  TRILETZ5)

13 BEEE (#)
HETHREFZEM

AEBFEARZEE L ME
FERZE—F+A=1—
BEARBEEFHHE LE2E
AIBEBYE RN ERZIR
BEELEBAHEITEM ZEH
BEhHR—REEENEMES
o8I EY E 2 M8
RIERTHER 2 AERAE
BT B A (FOBRFIA)
130,788,000/ 7T ' &£ E R EL =
—E——F+ZA=+—HIF
TEMEEKER T AR 2

FRAREEMEEEFEENR -

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BFEEE

The Group
Trademark-use-rights
HK$'000
rEBERHEERE
FHET
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE-—ZTHF—H—H 240,365
Addition through acquisitions FRWENB AR ZAE
of subsidiaries 162,834
At 31 December 2010 R_ZE—ZFF+_A=+—H 403,199
Addition through acquisition FRKEHNBARZAE
of subsidiaries (Note 30) (Kt13£30) 89,310
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_-_A=+—H 492,509
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt REESE:

At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010
and 31 December 2011

R-_B-ZF-A—-H —F-F%F
F+_A=+t—RAR=-T——F

+-A=+—H -
Carrying amount: BREIE
At 31 December 2011 R=-ZF——+=-A=+—H 492,509
At 31 December 2010 NR-_E-—FEFE+-A=+—H 403,199

HESREEZERERAT |
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15 GOODWILL

Cost:
At 1 January 2010

otes to the financial statements

(BRI=BHEE BRILETZ)

15 B8

B AR
W_ZE—ZFF—H—H

Addition through acquisitions of subsidiaries & B E N E AR 2K E

At 31 December 2010
Addition through acquisition
of subsidiaries (Note 30)

At 31 December 2011

Accumulated impairment losses:
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010
and 31 December 2011

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2010

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and
supermarket operations acquired as follows:

Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company
Limited (“Ginwa Bell Tower")
Golden Chance (Xi‘an) Limited (*GCX")

Ideal Mix Limited (“Ideal Mix")
(see Note 30)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

RoZ—FE+_A=+—A
7B B A T 2R E (A330)

Rt REEE

R-_E—ZTF—-—F—H —ZZ—ZTF+_H
=t —BERZT——F+ZA=1+—H
BRMEE

R=—ZB-——%+=-A=+—H

R-E—ZFF+-_A=+—H

The Group
HK$'000
rEE
THET

1,086,827
324,355

1,411,182

266,466

1,677,648

1,348,075

1,081,609

BERENTAEBEZEEAR
MBRMSEHFIEEREEZ

BRERBSELEN:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FExT FET
e IER D ER AT
(T&EEg]) 757,254 757,254
Golden Chance (Xi'an)
Limited ([GCX ) 324,355 324,355
Ideal Mix Limited ([Ideal
Mix ) (& HKfzE30) 266,466 -
1,348,075 1,081,609

Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 & (&)

Impairment loss WEEE

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
acquired 76.43% equity interests in Ginwa Bell Tower
for a consideration of HK$1,091.1 million. The excess of
the cost of purchase over the net fair value of Ginwa Bell
Tower's identifiable net assets of HK$1,086.8 million was
recorded as goodwill and allocated to the department
store operations of Ginwa Bell Tower. At 31 December
2008, due to the global economic crisis, the directors
of the Company have determined that the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit which the goodwill
related to was less than its carrying value by HK$329.6
million, and accordingly, an impairment loss of the same
amount was provided in 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
acquired 100% equity interests in GCX for a total
consideration of HK$458.6 million. The excess of the cost
of purchase over the net fair value of GCX'’s identifiable
net assets of HK$324.4 million was recorded as goodwill
and allocated to the department store operations of
GCX.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
acquired 100% equity interests in Ideal Mix for a total
consideration of HK$389.5 million (see Note 30). The
excess of the cost of purchase over the net fair value
of Ideal Mix’s identifiable net assets of HK$266.5
million was recorded as goodwill and allocated to the
department store and supermarket operations of Ideal
Mix.

The recoverable amount of each cash generating unit
was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2010: 2%), which is
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The growth rate used does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the cash
generating unit operates. The cash flows are discounted
using discount rates ranged from 13% to 14% (2010:
7%). The discount rates used are pre-taxed and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant cash generating
units.

RBE2E_ZEENF+ A
=+—HIEFE FTEBURE
1,091,100,0007% 7T W B8 & TE &
B76.43%BE-BEXNAR T
EEENI BRI EEFREBED
1,086,800,0008 70" 2 5 & ¥
TEHEEmB U NERESEEE
MNEEMGEE RZTEENF
+ZA=Z1+—8B BAREHREE
el KRARESEETHEE
BRNIREELEMMIKE S5
B HRME 4 7329,600,00078
JC Bt 5 4B R & B R R (B 8
BR_EENFHeRE-

BHE-_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—
HIEFE AEBENUNBRE
458,600,000/ T W BEGCXZ &
Bl A% - B B K AR B GCXHY AT 3%
RIEEFBZAAEFBEBER
324,400,000 70 ZE 28 T)
SHEEET DR EGIXZ B ERE
HE -

REE-_ZT——F+ - A8
=t+—HEFE KAEEKE
ldeal Mixz & ZB A% # - H 5+
389,500,000/ 7T ( & M
30) ° B8 E K A8 Ideal MixZ 7]
Bl & 7 EH266,500,0005% 7T
FB I EB A FHERE I 5 BE E Ideal
Mix2 BERRI MBATSE
ir%o

R E A B R A Yo 8558 T ik
FREETEmMET -BHEE
TERRBEAARESERAFH
BRENPKBE AR ENR G
REBAGFE - ARAFHZES
RERAGBT INEFIERE
2% (ZZ—ZF 2% ) ETH
o FEITERAE AR -
FriRAEERTTNBEIASESE
BAEEER REPFHER
K- HERERAUBEENTR
13%%14% (ZE—ZFF:7%)
HEITRAER - FTIR A Z BB R Ak
FRATBAIR K B R ERAERAIR £ 7%
EEBMZFTRE-
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RMBARZRE
The Company
PN
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FHET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRR D IR ANE 468,916 458,630
Less: impairment loss R EE R (1) )
468,915 458,629
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHFWTFTEZERNERHE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets EBARELBEZHE AR
or liabilities of the Group. 15 e

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLY
Place of Particulars of ~ The Group’s
establishment  registered and effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest Company subsidiary activities
BEBRAR rREZ
DNEER RIRERBE kEER ERER HEXRIARE AWELARE TEXK
Ginwa Bell Tower* PRC Renminbi ("RMB") 76.43% - 76.43% Operation of
HESERNHBERD A i 235,500,000 department
ARE(TAR%]) store
235,500,0007T RE2BERT
Century Ginwa Urumai PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Shopping Mall Company ~ # AEE department
Limited* 50,000,0007C store
tREESERERNTL REBELF
BRAA
Shaanxi Century Ginwa PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Tangrenjie Shopping H ARE department
Mall Company Limited 20,000,0007T store
("Ginwa Tangrenjie")* BEHENT
(Note 31)

RELLSEEAGESR
REELQA ([REEA
1) (Ht31)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrFFZE B8 & BIAE T ZE5)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 RMIBARIZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLY
Place of Particulars of ~ The Group’s
establishment  registered and effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest Company subsidiary activities
REINE I rEEZ
NEEH RURERBE REER ERELR HEXLIRE AWELAIRE TEXK
Xi'an Century Ginwa PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Nandajie Shopping Mall & ARE department
Company Limited* 5,000,0007C store
RZ L EAAGED REBELT
BLBERAA
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo ~ PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Shopping Mall Company ARE department
Limited* 30,000,0007T store
ARt e EERED BEBERT
BRAA
Xi'an Century Ginwa PRC HK$65,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Shopping Mall Company 65,000,000/ 70 department
Limited* store
ARt L ERNERAR BERERA
Xianyang Century Ginwa PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of
Trade and Commerce H N department
Company Limited* 3,000,0007T stores and
RGtLEetHEERAR supermarkets
BERERAR
BRTS
Xi'an Yixin Property PRC RMB60,000,000 100% - 100% Properties
Management Company AEE management
Limited* 60,000,0007C NEER
AZEENFERERAT
* The English translation of the names of these companies * RAIZEXNBREERDE -ZER
are for reference only. The official names of these AIZ IEA B HAFIBAE-

companies are in Chinese.




Loan receivable from a related party JEUSEEE A T E K
(Note (i) (K@)

Loan receivable (Note (ii) U E =K (K aEi)

Less: current portion of loan receivables & : EBWEZREIHD
classified as trade and other DEREREBEER
receivables T At Wk

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

17 LOAN RECEIVABLES

Loan receivable from a related party represented a
loan granted to Ginwa Investments Limited (“Ginwa
Investments”), a related party of the Group, and was part
of the assets acquired in the Group’s acquisition of Ginwa
Bell Tower in 2008. The principal balance of the loan is
RMB739.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$912.7
million). The loan is secured by convertible notes issued
by the Company to Best Mineral Resources Limited,
one of the Company’s equity shareholders, (the “BMRL
Notes”, see Note 25) and certain investments in equity
securities owned by Ginwa Investments, and is repayable
on 31 August 2013. Of the loan balance at 31 December
2011 is an amount of RMB351.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$433.0 million) (2010: RMB351.0
million, equivalent to approximately HK$412.5 million)
bearing interest at a rate of 6.90% per annum (2010:
6.22% per annum).

At 31 December 2010, loan receivable from a third
party comprised an unsecured loan of RMB1.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.1 million), bearing
interest at 7.839% per annum and was originally
scheduled to be repayable on 31 August 2011. In 2011,
the repayment of this loan is extended to 30 June 2012
with all other terms remained unchanged.

Annual Report 2011

(BRIE=BHEE BRILETZ)

17 BERER

it

(ii)

The Group

EE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®——% —T-ZF
FTHET TETT
805,458 681,174
- 3,526
805,458 684,700
- (3,526)
805,458 681,174

JERBEEBALTERIR _ZZEN
ERFELIEREBRAT ([£7E
WE]) (KEBzHEEAL)ZE
oW AAEEWRESIEEEFRA
WHEZHMNEE - ZERZALHE
&8 B AR %739,900,0005T (1H
B 49912,700,0005 7T ) ° % B &K
B QR AA QR Z AR Z —Best
Mineral Resources Limited 17 ] #
M Z 4 ([BMRLEE | » R M 5E25)
et EMBEERABS ZET
REERBERER-_ZE—=FN
A=+ BHEE-RERGHESE
FEHE-E——F+-_A=+—
H 284 AR®351,000,0007C
(#8% M #7433,000,000/8 ) (=
T —ZT4H: AR¥351,000,0007T
(FER 412,500,000 7T ) ) Tufft
EFBE690% (ZE—ZFF :5F
6.22% ) °

R—ZZE—-FTFE+_A=+—8"
ERE=ZFERERE —BEEKR
B AR%1,800,0007T (HBE R
492,100,000/ ) " 2 ERIEETF
7.839%Ft B MFRER T ——FN
A=+—HEE-BEZEENE
TEHZE—_T——FXA=+H"m
FrE E A GR35 T o
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18 INVENTORIES 18 78
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S
FET FAET
Merchandises 7 h 97,705 38,418
Low value consumables KEZFER 5,800 5,070
103,505 43,488
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as WRARZWINAGERFZRZ
an expense and included in the consolidated income FTEFESHOT
statement is as follows:
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-ZF
FExT FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERAE 397,294 191,739

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19 At ESRMEE

The Group
REE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——fF —E-TF
FET FHE T
Unlisted available-for-sale debt securities  JE_ T AJ it HEEHE S 66,945 -

HESREEERERAT | =
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20 EWERF R EMERIR KRR

PREPAYMENT FOR INVESTMENT IN A MEARZREZEMNNRE
SUBSIDIARY
(a) Trade and other receivables (a) FEWERIE HthEWR
The Group The Company
REE VAN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—BE--F ~-—Z2-ZF ZEBE--f —E-ZF
FTHRx FET FTHx FHET
Trade receivable FEW EE =T BR 3K
from third parties 42,168 29,439 - -
Less: allowance for B REREIE
doubtful debts (Hrazain)
(Note (i) (3,518) (3,352) - -
38,650 26,087 - -
Amounts due from JiE i B 38 A £+ 308
related parties (i & i) )
(Note (iii)) 46,781 27,537 - -
Amounts due from R NEIE S

subsidiaries (Note (iv))  (ffzE(iv)) -
Less: allowance for W REREK
doubtful debts (FraEa)
(Note (i) -

1,695,838 1,706,916

(20,820) (24,503)

- - 1,675,018 1,682,413

Prepayments, deposits ~ FBfIFIE ke R E

and other receivables i FE LR 197,264 103,368 82,397 382
282,695 156,992 1,757,415 1,682,795

Except for deposits of HK$4,119,000 (2010: BriZ £4,119,0008 L (=& —
HK$637,000), all of the trade and other receivables are T4 1 637,000/ 0 ) YN FTE &
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses WSt B 3R R L A JE UK T HA S 1 —
within one year. FRRBIHER AL -
Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note REEZEEBRFIBERNM T
32(a). 32(a) °

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENT FOR INVESTMENT IN A
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of
the reporting period:

Less than 1 month LR —1{E A
More than 1 month

but less than 3 months
More than 3 months

={EALA L

Trade receivables that were not impaired mainly
relate to credit card centres owned by financial
institutions for whom there were no recent history
of default and have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Impairment of trade and other receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade and other receivables
directly (See Note 2(j)(i)).

(BrIF=EHEH  TRILETZ5)

20 BUWARM K H KRR R
%EﬂﬁZEEZﬁﬁﬂﬁ

(a) EWERARKRHEMEBWR(E)
HiaE

(i)

— {8 A LA BB =1 A

(i)

HESREEZERERAT |

BR#R 0 AT

FHAE AR R N At B YR 2
FEU IR (B MR RAREE)
RBEHRZREOTAT

The Group
rEH

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E——f —T—=4
THET FHET
32,243 21,214
1,178 3,813
5,229 1,060
38,650 26,087

I #RE 2 R AR N B L
MBRBREZERRTLE
B M SHEYEIREN
iR EAREE RS 2 HE
iR RBABELR EEE
HIEBHR%EEBRIERER
B RESEEERYEEK
BEERBBHRED A 2EUK
[B] o 7N 6= B3 48 5L 5% 5 A AR A
BERERR -

P W B o T EL At P KUK 2 (B
R TR R % L At MR 2 IR E
EEEABERLE  EAE
ERRBRRAEZA RS
WE - RER R A B R R R
RR RN L At 8 W (L
T2()(0)) °
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20 RWIRAR R H M EW R KRR
PREPAYMENT FOR INVESTMENT IN A MEBABZEEZFANIHIE
SUBSIDIARY (continued) (#&)

(a) Trade and other receivables (continued) () EWERRREMEWRK(E)
Notes: (continued) Biat: (&)
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables (i) FEBUERRREMERIZRE
(continued) (%)
The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts FAZREERZHNOT
during the year are as follows:
The Group The Company
TEH NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2B =—ZEF-ZF ZB-—-F =ZZ-ITF
FEx FHT FHERT FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 3,352 3,244 24,503 31,500
Exchange adjustments  [& 3,7 %8 166 108 - -
Additions through 7 B U HE B B
acquisition of NAIZARE
subsidiaries 2,850 - - -
Reversal of impairment 1&gl )& (& 518
losses (2,850) - (3,683) (6,997)
At 31 December ®+=A
=+—H 3,518 3,352 20,820 24,503
(iii) Amounts due from related parties (i) FEWEEALTNE
The amounts due from related parties are JIE W 38 A\ = RIE AR AR A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed B R E E R o

terms of repayment.

(iv) Amounts due from subsidiaries (iv) FEWRHEBQITRE
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, JE BT /B8 A B k0B A R R
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of B R & R KR o
repayment.

(b) Prepayment for investment in a subsidiary (b) RHMBARIZREZRNNRE
As 31 December 2011, the prepayment for RZE——F+=ZA=+—8"
investment in a subsidiary represented an amount R B AR 2R E 2B FKIETY
prepaid for the Group’s intended acquisition of the BB BN AE BB IR TE
entire equity interests in Shaanxi Qianhui Company BEXBRAF([TEL 22H
Limited (“Qianhui”) (see Note 36(a)). The acquisition A% ( R HT5E36(a)) ° =KX W BE
was completed on 16 January 2012. FENR_ZT——F—A+RAE

HITEK e

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERAEEEHEE
The Group The Company
rEHE AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-—-F T T ZEB--—F —ZT-TF
THERT FET THERT FHET
Cash at bank and in hand 42 & 81 %k &
in the consolidated BIRITERFR
statement of financial FEERS
position 236,012 115,101 442 2,954
Less: restricted cash at  Jg : SR{T RIS
bank (Note (i) (HtaE()) (116,279) -
Cash and cash equivalents 28R E&RERZ
in the consolidated cash fﬁ%&fﬁé‘c\%ﬁ
flow statement 15 B 119,733 115,101

Note: Bt & -

(i) Restricted cash at bank represented bank deposits pledged ()  RITZBRIRE HIRIRITF R LA
to secure the Group’s long-term bank loan (see Note RASERBABRITEREER (R
23(b)). MaE23(b) ) ©

The Group’s operations of department stores and K‘Elﬁﬂq:.ZEjg%QT&ﬁz&‘mi%

supermarkets in the PRC are conducted in RMB. RMB is GRAREE IR T A R IT o A R A

not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of EI= Eta/ujﬁ S B EES AR

RMB out of the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and WE S =0 J8 = 0 B R T A8 M O A B8 SN E

regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by *‘*%\]iﬁﬁl\lj&%ﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ

the PRC government.
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENERFREMEAN

The Group The Company
AEE b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —T-TF ZB——F ZT—TF
FExT FAET FExT FAET
Trade payable arising from: JEfFBR VA LA & 18
EEE
— Concession sales — RS 601,143 337,731 - -
— Purchase of -BERFE
inventories 83,281 21,702 - -
684,424 359,433 - -
Amounts due to related  FE{TEIE A+ T8
parties (Note (i) (K1aE@)) 107,291 30,047 20,008 -
Amounts due to RN NEIE =
subsidiaries (Note (i) (BEEG)) - - 7,235 452,655
Other payables and Hih e BT B
accrued expenses )z 295,339 232,801 17,179 9,429
Financial liabilities R At E S
measured at amortised BB &
cost 1,087,054 622,281 44,422 462,084
Derivative financial PTEERITA
instruments (Note 25(ii))  ( KfzE25(ii)) - 1,808 - 1,808
Deferred income EIT UL A 9,039 4,085 - -
Receipts in advance 78 Y A 553,530 569,929 - -
1,649,623 1,198,103 44,422 463,892

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as revenue within one year or are
repayable on demand.

Note:

()

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Annual Report 2011
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other payables are trade payable

with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the
reporting period:

Due within one month or on demand

A

23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS

(@) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans

(BRIF=EER BRILETZS)

22 ENRAREMEST (&)
BR 2 A

At AR BRR R H A B B2 FE A BR
RRBMEIRZFWOTAT

R — 18 A R B H ki B SR

The Group
rEE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——-F —_TFF
THET TETT
684,424 359,433

23 RITREMER
(a) AEEZEHRTRAEMER

are analysed as follows: FHm:
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E——F —ZT-TF
TR FHET
Bank loans: RITER
— Guaranteed by related parties —HAEALER 46,811 45,773
— Guaranteed by a related party and —HREIE A+ 1R LA
secured by properties of related AT ZEERR
parties 31,175 55,271
— Guaranteed by a third party —HBE=FER 6,167 -
84,153 101,044
Add: current portion of long-term  f1: RHERTRHME K
bank and other loans Z BVERER 1) 22,147 48,327
106,300 149,371

HESTHHEZRERAT © =
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23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 23 |ITREMER (4)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) XEEzRBE\ETREMER
are analysed as follows: DHWE:
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FHET FAET
Bank loans: RITEN:
— Secured by properties and bank —AREE 2 YE KRBT
deposits of the Group (Note (i) R E IR (BF3E()) 471,140 237,974
Other loan: EME:
— Secured by properties —ABEAN T2
of a related party 1B 3 - 27,174
471,140 265,148
Less: current portion of long-term  J§: ERHIRITRAMER
bank and other loans 2 BIHAER 19 (22,147) (48,327)
448,993 216,821

Note: Bt &t -

(i) At 31 December 2011, the long-term bank loan is (i) R_E——F+-_A=+—8"
secured by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings FRHBRTERUNASEBE 2HEE
and bank deposits (see Note 21(i)). The aggregate T REFRBITFR(RWFE
carrying value of the secured properties amounted 210 e -N—_E——F+—A8
to HK$931.3 million at 31 December 2011 (2010: =+—H BEEREVMEZAERE
HK$745.1 million). /#$931,300,000/8 7L (=T — T F:

745,100,000/ 7T ) °

The long-term bank and other loans are repayable RHRTREMERARN TYIEEE

as follows: B
The Group
rEE

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——F —E-TF

FHET FET

Within 1 year or on demand —FE NN ERE 22,147 48,327

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 20,571 21,153

After 2 years but within 5 years WEEZERFNR 161,325 63,460

After 5 years HFE 267,097 132,208

471,140 265,148

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans
are analysed as follows: (continued)

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings
are carried at amortised cost. At 31 December
2011, none of the non-current interest-bearing
borrowings is expected to be settled within one
year. In 2011, the Group repaid the long-term bank
loan of HK$238.0 million at 31 December 2010 in
order to obtain additional financings from another
financial institution.

(c) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
32(b). At 31 December 2011, none of the covenants
relating to the bank and other loans had been
breached (2010: HK$NiIl).

24 UNSECURED NOTES

On 3 December 2010, the Company issued unsecured
notes with a principal amount of HK$138.7 million as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of the 100%
equity interests in GCX. The unsecured notes are non-
interest bearing and maturing on 3 December 2012.

In 2011, the Company redeemed an aggregate principal
amount of HK$54.3 million of the unsecured notes at
par with cash as a consideration. The difference between
the carrying amount of the unsecured notes redeemed
and the related principal amount of HK$11.4 million was
debited to capital reserve within equity as a distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company.

HESREEERERAT |

23 RITREMER (4)

(b) XEEZRBE\ETREMER
oM (&)
Fr A FEBNHAGT B8 3k 5 1 85
MAEAR - R=_E—F+=_AH
=+—8 #$EENHEEERK
EHER —FRBEE-RZ_Z
—F AEEEEN-_ZT—F
F+-A=+—BHzZEHETE
7X238,000,0007& 7T MA A H Ath
TR EESREI R E -

(o) XEBETRITERABRTR
HERMBBII L ZMERHESD
PRS2 5k - i AN SR BE
Rz FERGH BRGARERE
B AEBEHERHETRE
Rz B - BERANSEEIRR
BE SRR E—SFHBEHENM
F3200) RZE——F+= A
=t—H #ERRTEREME
RERZRECDBER (ZF—
TETEIT) °

4 BEARE

R-ZE-TFE+-_A=H KA
1775 % %8 /138,700,000 7T 2 &K
HEE  ERWIBEGCXE ARk # 2 &
M RAME - MEFRRE A NEIA AR
—E-ZF+ A=A

MRZE——F ARAIUBEEAKE
R EEE B A 5 A £ 554,300,000
BT ERREE -FTELEEKARRE
BrEEERARASBEZEZEA
11,400,000/8 70 * BT AR HETE T I%
KNEEE MEBARRARIBRED IR
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 25 ATBRREE
The Group's convertible notes are analysed as follows: RAREFB 7o REE2ESHFWMT
Derivative Derivative
Derivative ~ components  components
Liability =~ components - conversion - redemption
components - call options options options Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TS5 - T4 - TS -
aEDH ABLE EhgE EoHE @t
TEL TET FEL FEL TEL
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-T5-F-A 856,771 (44,612) - - 812,159
Convertible notes issued on R-ZE—Z4+-A=H
3 December 2010 Bz ARREE
(Note 25(ii)) (Hz#25(i) 418,265 - 208,144 260,591 887,000
Amount classified as derivative DA EHBIE
financial instrument ks (2,558) - - - (2,558)
Redemption FRED
during the year (12,425) 641 - - (11,784)
Offset with loan receivable B2 fEUT & 314K 54 (458,478) 60,973 - - (397,505)
Extinguishment BERERBMRLEE
and recognition
of the BMRL Notes (47,832) (12,863) - - (60,695)
Accrued finance charges for BB
the year 82,054 - - - 82,054
Fair value changes on the T4 2 AR EE
derivative components - (124.696) 103,019 (11,892) (33,569)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF
+ZA=1t-H 835,797 (120,557) 311,163 248,699 1,275,102
Convertible notes issued on - RZZE——FMWA+ L8
19 April 2011 Bz UBRER
(Note 25(ii)) (Bz250) 299,847 - - 146,268 446,115
Convertible notes issued on  R=E——EF [ =+
24 May 2011 &I TBRRER
(Note 25(iif)) (BaE250i)) 58,230 (10,820) 88,073 - 135,483
Conversion during the year & ( i 325(v))
(Note 25(iv)) (457,974) 57,365 (78,164) (88,037) (566,810)
Extinguishment and BRERBAIRREE
recognition of covertible — (fifaE25(i))
notes (Note 25(ii)) (168,749) - (16) 83,044 (85,721)
Interest paid FRERE
during the year (33,625) - - - (33,625)
Accrued finance charges for 4 /i fE 581 7 %
the year 159,492 - - - 159,492
Fair value changes onthe T4z AR EE
derivative components - 46,398 (262,595) 9,531 (206,666)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——4F
+-A=1+-H 693,018 (27,614) 58,461 399,505 1,123,370
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

On 19 September 2008, the Company has issued
unsecured convertible notes with an aggregate face value
of HK$1,231.6 million, bearing interest at 2.75% per
annum and maturing on 18 September 2013 to BMRL,
one of the Company’s equity shareholders, i.e. the BMRL
Notes.

Upon issuance, the holder of the BMRL Notes could, at
any time up till 18 September 2013, convert the BMRL
Notes into the Company’s shares at HK$0.689 per share
(i.e. the equity component). The Company has the right
to redeem the BMRL Notes in whole or in part at any
time before the maturity date at its face value (i.e. the
call option). The call option is classified as derivative
financial instrument and has been included in the balance
of convertible notes in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In 2010, as a result of the Company’s
rights issue, the conversion price of the BMRL Notes was
adjusted to HK$0.54 per share.

On 3 December 2010, a principal amount of the BMRL
Notes of HK$544.2 million has been used to offset
a portion of the loan receivable due from Ginwa
Investments (see Note 17). At the same time, the holder
of the BMRL Notes has agreed to amend the terms of the
BMRL Notes from interest bearing at 2.75% per annum
to non-interest bearing. As the change represented a
substantial modification to the terms of the BMRL Notes,
the remaining BMRL Notes has been accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial instrument and
the recognition of a new financial instrument.

On 3 December 2010, the Company has issued unsecured
convertible notes with an aggregate face value of
HK$887.0 million, bearing interest at 3% per annum
and maturing on 2 December 2015 to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. (the “Hony
Convertible Notes”).

(BrIF=EHEH  TRILETZ5)

25 ARRTEE (&)

Wit

()

(ii)

RZZEZNFAATILA KRAA
BT8R EE A1,231,600,000
BILIREF2I5% L BHR T
—ZFNATN\BRHRELRARA
1% B BMRLZ 45 1 A] #2 ik = 4% - A
BMRLE o

MNEEITER BMRLEE 2158 AR
ZE—=FNA+ N\HAMERERE
1% 9 1%0.6897% JT #§ BMRLEE & 8 1%
BARNBZ KRG (BIEZEM) o &
N B)A R ER B BB i 2 50 sk 5T
PERBMRLE# (Bl REHIHE) -
REHESEATESRIT ALY
Wt AR A SRR 2 AT R =
BEH-R_T—ZTF RARAZ
A& BMRLEBR cHHRERAESR
EFR%0.5478 7T

RZE—FF+-H=H BMRLE
& 2 7K 4 %8544,200,00078 7T 2 #
BERERKSTERE ZBHER
(RM7E17) - [RIBF BMRLEE 2 1
BANCE R EENBMRLEE 2 5§
B BIREE2. 5% B AR A .
R Z BB E X ¥ BMRLEE 155K
ZEXNIER  WER TBMRLERE A
FEAEERSBITALRERT S
TH-

RZZE—ZTFE+_A=H &x27
B #{T428R F{E 45887,000,00078 7T
BEEF3% T BTN T —AF
+Z A Z R 38 EHony Capital
Fund 2008 GP, LPE B HAMEB AR
Al AR R FEE ([Hony Al #2
RERE]) -
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Upon issuance, the holder of the Hony Convertible Notes
can, at any time up till 2 December 2015, convert the
Hony Convertible Notes into the Company’s shares at
HK$0.275 per share (i.e. the conversion option). The
holder of the Hony Convertible Notes also has a right to
require the Company to redeem the Hony Convertible
Notes in whole or in part at any time from 3 December
2013 till the maturity date at its face value plus a pre-
determined premium (i.e. the redemption option). Both
the conversion and redemption options are classified as
derivative financial instruments and have been included
in the balance of convertible notes in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In addition to the above, a derivative financial instrument
related to an option granted to the holder of the Hony
Convertible Notes on 3 December 2010 was recognised
and included in trade and other payables (see Note 22)
at 31 December 2010. This option entitled the holder of
the Hony Convertible Notes to subscribe for additional
convertible notes to be issued by the Company of up to
HK$443.5 million, where the major terms and conditions
would be substantially the same as the Hony Convertible
Notes issued on 3 December 2010. On 19 April 2011, the
holder of the Hony Convertible Notes has exercised this
option and subscribed for additional convertible notes
with an aggregate face value of HK$443.5 million which
mature on 18 April 2016 (the “Hony Convertible Notes
1").

On 31 October 2011, the holder of the Hony Convertible
Notes and the Hony Convertible Notes Il has agreed to
amend the terms of the Hony Convertible Notes and the
Hony Convertible Notes Il from interest bearing at 3% per
annum to non-interest bearing. As the change represented
a substantial modification to the terms of the Hony
Convertible Notes and the Hony Convertible Notes II, the
Hony Convertible Notes and the Hony Convertible Notes I
have been accounted for as extinguishment of the original
financial instruments and the recognition of new financial
instruments.

On 24 May 2011, the Company has issued unsecured
convertible notes with an aggregate face value of
HK$94.5 million, bearing interest at 1.5% per annum
and maturing on 24 May 2014 to Grand Well Group
Limited (“Grand Well”) as part of the consideration on
the acquisition of Ideal Mix (the “Grand Well Convertible
Notes”) (see Note 30).
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RBERE (&)
At ()

(iii)

REFTH  HonyRAl MR EE 2 #HE
ARIRZZE—HFE+_AZAAIFE
{a] B 6 4% & 1%0.27578 7T #§ Hony AJ
MR ERER BARNA 2D (A
EEIRE) o Hony [ 2R 1R 2 45
BEANAEERKARARBEZST
—ZF+ - A=-ZHREZFHA LT
R IREREENLEBLER
) 4 (B BB B 2 3P ok 5640 Hony A #2 i%
iR (BRI AR ) - s A B
EHEYSEATESRTAYE
TR ER A AN R B AT IR AR R
HEHR -

BrEfEN HERTFTR_Z—F
£+~ A=HZHonyr[ IR EiE ~
BEAZ - EREEBW 2 —EHIT
SERMTEEERERTAR ST —
ZFE+-_AZ+—HZENEREZK
Hib AR (RWE22)  ZRERE
FEHony I MR RIEIFB A G ERE
RA R EETT 2 5 % 443,500,000
T2 BEANPI IR AR B AR T i BT
EFZRRREHEBER-_ZE—F
F+ZA=H%1T ZHonyAl ] %
ERABHER - R -_T——%FMWMA
+7 B Honyrl B ZEE ZHE A
EITEZAEE RELEEAEAR
443,500,000/ LI R — T — 7R F
MA+N\BEH BN RKREE
([HonymJ AR &I ) ©

RZZE——F+H=+—H Hony
A A% =5 R Hony ] 2 iR =12
B ABREEE Hony il AR Z &
R Hony FI AR 1R 112 {6530 16F 2
3%IEEI REFE -BHRZEESHEE
S Hony A # A% £ 48 & Hony Al # i% 2=
FBIMESR 2 EARIE I - B Hony AT 32 %
Z 9 R Hony ] # IR Z K IE 5 BR 5
AEEREEMITAYHER AT
BT E-

RZE——FRAZTHAB XA
A2 8174 BRE (& /294,500,000
BLTHREF1.5%E8 TR =
T-MFRA-Z+TNBRBEE
Grand Well Group Limited ([ Grand
Well | )z &3 # 7] # i £ &
(IGrand WellrT#2p 224 1) - AR
AUz Ideal Mixz 20K 1E (R Bt
F£30) °
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

Upon issuance, the Company has the right to redeem the
Grand Well Convertible Notes in whole or in part at any
time before the maturity date at its face value (i.e. the
call option). The holder of the Grand Well Convertible
Notes can, at any time up till 24 May 2014, convert the
Grand Well Convertible Notes into the Company’s shares
at HK$0.40 per share (i.e. the conversion option). Both
the call and conversion options are classified as derivative
financial instruments and have been included in the
balance of convertible notes in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

On 28 June 2011 and 28 September 2011, the holder
of the Hony Convertible Notes converted notes with
an aggregate face value of HK$305.0 million into
1,109,090,908 shares of the Company. Upon completion
of the conversion of the Hony Convertible Notes, the
amount of HK$110.9 million, representing the par
value, was credited to the Company’s share capital. The
difference between the carrying amount of the converted
Hony Convertible Notes and the par value of HK$212.9
million was credited to the share premium amount.

On 18 August 2011 and 31 October 2011, the holder of
the BMRL Notes converted notes with an aggregate face
value of HK$369.0 million into 683,333,332 shares of
the Company. Upon completion of the conversion of the
BMRL Notes, the amount of HK$68.3 million, representing
the par value, was credited to the Company's share
capital. The difference between the carrying amount of
the converted BMRL Notes and the par value of HK$174.7
million was credited to the share premium amount. In
addition, HK$86.0 million of the equity component of the
BMRL Notes has been transferred from the capital reserve
to the share premium amount in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(m).

(BRIF=EHEH  TRILETZ5)

25 AEKRREE (&)
At ()

(iv)

REEITR - ARRBENEIHBER
FE1a] B B 42 EL AR T (B 1B (2] 2 3B =k 3P
7 Grand Wella[ # ik Z ¥ (1R 8
HAHE) o Grand Well AJ IR ik 7 5
EARZZE—MNFRA=Z+MA
AT e 12 B A% 0.4078 T Grand
Well P R F BB AR AT 2R
7 (BNEH ER#E ) - R BRI I g4k
HESSBEATESM T EYBIE
EREMBRAROTBRREELS

R-ZE——FXA-+N\BAE=
T——HNA -+ /\H Honyd
BREREBCHBEAEKREERES
57305,000,000/ L 2 ZiEE R A
1,109,090,908% A 2 &) F i@ A% « A
FERK bt N i Hony AT R R 2 HR 1%
& 4 £1110,900,000% 7T 2 A BE
BIVEA R RIRR A B 88 2~ Hony A]
BERER EEOELAAEERE
212,900,000 7t * A BR 5 1ER% 15 4
EiRo

RZE——FNAT+NBEZZE
——F+A=+—8 BMRLEEHR
B AL 9 E 4% /369,000,000
BILZEBRBRAEARARAZ
683,333,332/ f& 10 o 1A ST Ak &2 4%
BMRLE & B - I {E 4 168,300,000
BTEARINERARAIZBRA B
@it 7 BMRLER 2 IREE HEE
A 3E174,700,0007 7T ABRFIIERL
DB EE B BMRLEE 2 #%
=17 /86,000,000 7T 0 B 1R & W
2mZ Bt R BRAFEHEE R
f&1n B ERR o
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Fair value of the derivative components

The estimate of the fair value of the derivative
components of the above convertible notes are measured

25

(BRI=BHEE BRILETZ)

RBERE (&)
PTERBZAAE
EARREE 2 STEBH 2 DA ME
st DR A MR & H

based on a binomial lattice model. Details of the BFTRARKRZFBEOT
assumptions used are as follows:
Derivative components of
Derivative component of ~ Derivative components of the Hony Derivative components of the Hony  the Grand Well Convertible
the BMRL Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Il Notes
Grand Well TRRZE 29714
BVRLE S 2 T £ 31} HonyT & REE 2 f1£ 84 HonyT &R R 112 £ 36 B4
Date of valuation 311212011 3112/2010 31122011 31/10/2011  31/12/2010  31/12/2011  31/10/2011  19/04/2011  31/12/2011  24/05/2011
ftERH R-8--F RZ2-3%F R-F--F R-%-8F R-Z--F R-8--F
tZh tZAh t2B R=%--% tZA tZB R2%--% R28--F tZB R-%--%
Zt-8 =t-B =t-B tAZt-B =t-B Z+-B tAZ+-8B REAtAR  Z1-B ZAZ1EH
Share price (HKS) TRE (%) 0.36 0.70 0.36 041 0.70 0.36 041 0.77 0.36 0.56
Exercise price (HKS) EE(AT) 0.54 0.54 0275 0.275 0275 0275 0275 0.275 0.400 0.400
Expected volatility BHRE 60.021% 79.659% 72.959% 72.228% 82.011% N/A N/A N/A 66.009% 76.556%
R TR TR
Dividend yeild hEx - - - - - - - - - -
Maturity period B8 1.72years  272years  393years  409years 493 years  430years  447years  5.00years  2.40years  3.00 years
1725 Y 393F 4,095 493% 430% 4475 5005 2405 3,00
Conversion period EHiER 1.72years  272years  393years  4.09years  493vyears  430years  447vyears  5.00years  2.40years 3.0 years
1% 10E 393F 4,095 493% 430% 447% 5005 2405 3.00F
Discount rate biE 3 15.243% 8.539% 22.480% 20.333% 23.397% 22.555% 20.430% 20.926% 19.657% 19.609%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the derivative components), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Dividend yield are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 November 2001, whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees and service providers of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at HK$1 to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The share options granted in 2010 do not have
a vesting condition and are exercisable within a period of
five years. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.
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BEREGEUARD XN 2R S

ARAHRE-BEEBEAILN_-F
T—F+—ARNBERM BUHARF
EEERRTHBRAGASERE &
REHEE (BRAKEETEAR
AlZER)RIBETLEMARBALQT
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BRELEURDIF 2RSS

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company has a new share option scheme which was
adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees and service providers of the Group, including
directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at HK$1 to subscribe for shares of the Company.
For the options granted under this new scheme in 2011,
27,900,000 share options will vest immediately from the
date of grant, and for the remaining 148,200,000 share
options, 50% will vest after one year from the date of
grant, another 30% will vest after two years from the
date of grant, and the remaining 20% will vest after
three years from the date of grant. The share options
granted in 2011 will lapse on 20 October 2017. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in
shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the share
options granted during the reporting period
are as follows:

(&)
ARFER_E——F-_A+HBHE
MEFTEIERT S B ARAIES
EEERNBEEREE RASE 2 RS
HEE (BEAEETAHKERRE
)R 1BILENAREADR KRG
ERE - RN T ——FREFHTE
B2 BT S 0 27,900,00017 B8
BEEETEREBHEZNREE M
FER T 148,200,000/ BB IEM S » &
B eARHBHE—FRER"
F—30%Bea R BHERTESE
B % T20%BeaREBBHE=F
BRB- RN —FREBRES
TR _F—+tF+A-FTHEK-FT
MERER THEATRBAQR—
RE BRI IAR D ZEEE 2R -

(a) REBEHANERHBREZIF
RRAREWT

Contractual
Number of life of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
ITHA®HR BEAT BRESAHB

Share options granted to

directors:
RyESZBERE:

—on 20 October 2010 9,300,000 No vesting condition 5 years
—-R_ZE—ZEF+H_-+H Rigk::3-2) AP SEs R
—on 20 October 2011 21,250,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZT——F+HAZ+H B HBE R —F NE
—on 20 October 2011 12,750,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZF——F+H=-+H B A AR E NEF
—on 20 October 2011 8,500,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——F+H-+H BRE AR =F NE

HESTHEEERERAT
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 EREGEURBZAZRS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (%&)
(a) The terms and conditions of the share (a) RHEHARNSRHBRE 2K
options granted during the reporting period FRGEHENT: (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Contractual
Number of life of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
ITAEHA BEGYE BRESAHES
Share options granted to
employees and service
providers:
RTEERRBEET 2B
R
—on 20 October 2010 32,700,000 No vesting condition 5 years
—-RZZE-FF+HA-TH A 45 57 B {5k 1 e
—on 20 October 2011 27,900,000 No vesting condition 6 years
—-RZE——F+A=-+H A 48 57 8B 151 NEF
—on 20 October 2011 52,850,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZT——F+HZ+H B BB —F N
—on 20 October 2011 31,710,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZE——F+A=+H B B AR E NE
—on 20 October 2011 21,140,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZE——F+HZ+H B ARE=F NEF

Total share options granted 218,100,000
ERH 2 EREEE

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BRELEURDIF 2RSS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) ()
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BREZEBRMEFEHITHE
price of the share options are as follows: BT :
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
In¥EF 15 hnEF
THEE BREZE TEE MEBREZEA
Outstanding FHERITE
at the beginning
of the year HK$0.315 42,000,000 HK$0.74 18,638,000
0.315/8 7t 0.74% 7T
Granted FABEHEH
during the year HK$0.49 176,100,000 HK$0.315 44,000,000
0.493%& T 0.3158 7T
Exercised FREITE
during the year - - HK$0.315  (2,000,000)
0.315% 7T
Forfeited FRERK
during the year - - HK$0.74 (18,638,000)
0.74%7T
Outstanding at the F & ARITE
end of the year HK$0.456 218,100,000 HK$0.315 42,000,000
0.45638 7T 0.315%8 7T
Exercisable at the  F4& 7] F17{F
end of the year HK$0.385 69,900,000 HK$0.315 42,000,000
0.385%& T 0.315%8 7T

No share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 2,000,000 share
options were exercised, and the weighted average

REE-_ZT——F+_A=+—
BIEFE HMEBRERETHE-
(ZZE—ZFF 12,000,000 K&

share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised was HK$0.71).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2011 had an exercise price of HK$0.456 (2010:
HK$0.315) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5.4 years (2010: 4.8 years).

RETE BETEBRENT
FEEHZMEFIKRER.7I
BIT)

RZF——F+ZA=+—HHEXKIT
FRERE Z{THER04LSEE T (=
T—FF:0.315870) &K INEF9 8%
TEHNFHASAF (ZE—ZF:48
F)o



B 8 % W

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

otes to the financial statements

(%)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on the Black-Scholes Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise

are incorporated into the model.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

Fair value at measurement date
Share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used
in the modelling under the Black-
Scholes Model)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average life used in the modelling
under the Black-Scholes Model)

Expected dividends
Risk-free interest rate (based on the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes)

BREAAERRER

1T1EE

JEHPR IR (ARBHA 77 —&F
FR AT R A AR AL AR BT A Y
AHEF IR IE 5 R )

BREFH (RIEM N —
FRAT BRI AR IR AT
HY INHE S 19 F HR SR )

TERR S
RN E (RIBEFBIME
EeZB1E)
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26 BEREEEURODINTZXRE

BREAAERER

PASR BB AP SR BN 2 P 1S RS Y
ARELZEERLBREDN
NAEHE-EROBREAA
BTIRIENA 50 — &F B AT R AL i
E-GRUTERBREZALN
FHERARPITE 2TAR-

Share options
granted on
20 October

2011

R-ZB——F

+A=+H
Bz
B R

HK$0.248
0.248% T
HK$0.48
0.483& T
HK$0.49
0.4958 T

74.131%

3.7 years

3.7%
0%

0.40%-0.73%

Share options
granted on
20 October

2010

N_ZE—ZF

+AZ=+H
Rtz
B A

HK $0.151
0.1518 T
HK$0.31
0.31%8 7T
HK$0.315
0.315/87C

85.246%

2.5 years

2.5%
0%

0.572%
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26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BRELEURGIF 2R

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on

(%)
() BRELAABRRBR (&)

TEHPR B TYAR IR SLOR R (1B
P A0 82 T F HIET E)
AEAURBEARAISZERMR
R HROR 0 2 A {r] T8 A S B 1 11 5

publicly available information. Expected dividends o ?EHHH TNI‘E?FJ_?&HQ%‘E
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the cEEBRERMNERTH A
subjective input assumptions could materially affect 1EQ+LEJZE7t%§;

the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted either with or without
a service condition. This condition, if any, has not
been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There were

R R O AR IR S BB R AR AR AR5 (5%
R - R Bt B SRS
B 7o (B B 30 B E L 6 (20
B) - REBEIE T ETIZER

no market conditions associated with the share R o
options granted.
27 WARRANTS 27 %%’ i R R

On 17 August 2009, the Company issued 231,600,000
warrants at a price of HK$0.011 each to an independent
third party. Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.29 per share, and the warrants are
exercisable within a period of two years.

In 2009, 10,000,000 warrants were exercised. In 2010,
as a result of the rights issue and the issue of the
Hony Convertible Notes mentioned in Note 25(ii), the
number of outstanding warrants has been increased to
321,320,000 with the subscription price being adjusted
to HK$0.20 per share. In 2010, a further 20,000,000
warrants were exercised. During the year ended 31
December 2011, the remaining 301,320,000 warrants
have been exercised.

—EERNFENATER ARG
{ﬁo.o11,%m2ﬁ$%ﬁ =2 5hva
=J7%17231,600,0001) RRRETE o
7RI B T 5B AR AR R %
BER0.29B LRE — ARG ER
f% - BRI EE A ERAITE-

R =—ZZAF 10,000,000 R %
BECETFE RZZE—ZF N
% K B 5E25(i)FT it 2 3 fTHony A #2
BREERE ARTERREZFHE
5155321,320,0001’7} i 52 B B 7

EFRO20BTTL-R_E—FF-
zo 000,00017 R ERE B — 1T
F-RBEZT—F+=A=1—
B IFEE  #T7301,320,0001) R M
BEEITE

HESREEERERAT | =
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 28 HMBMRERAZABHR
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) FEMBEMRREKRAZAEHE
consolidated statement of financial position SE

are as follows:

The Group
rEE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E——fF —E-TF
FERT F#ET
Balance of income tax payable R—A— BRSNS
at 1 January 65,231 39,689
Exchange adjustments 0E W AR 3,549 1,839
Addition through acquisition of BRWENBRRIZAE
subsidiaries (Note 30) (Kt3£30) 2,103 -
Provision for income tax on the HAFERBFERTRR 2
estimated taxable profits for the year Fr{5®t &4 (K155 7(a))
(Note 7(a)) 79,001 50,658
Withholding income tax on dividends 7<% @ > B [ B 2 7] 5% f++
paid by a PRC subsidiary of the Z R ETEIAEH
Group (Note 7(a)) (Ktax7(a)) - 1,548
(Over-)/under-provision in respect of  BEFE (HBRERE) BiE
prior years (Note 7(a)) e (Kiat7(a)) (3,626) 853
Income tax paid during the year FAENFER (63,734) (29,356)
Balance of income tax payable R+ A=+—BERMHAE
at 31 December Tt 4 £ 82,524 65,231

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(BIF=EHEH

ERILETZ7)

28 MBRARAZAEB (4)

(b) ERRBEEHBEEEREE:

(i) The Group (i) ZF&H
The components of deferred tax assets/ RIFEP KRR RERZ
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated BEMBEE,(AaB)2
statement of financial position and the B RFEARNZEBHOT
movements during the year are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE af
Fair value
Depreciation adjustments  Fair value
allowances Accrued on fixed assets ~ adjustments
inexcess of  expenses and intangible  on available-
the related and assets for-sale
Unused ~ depreciation deferred and related financial
Deferred tax arising from: tax loss expenses income Total  depreciation assets Total Net
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEEER
EWEEC TWHHEER
ABR FEBREEL EXEXR MERE EEZDRE
BT EEEE 2 BERE: REFE RBRERX EEUA it HEBRE ik ait E
i iR i ThR T iR Thn Tin
At 1 January 2010 RZE-%%
-A-H - 9422 2822 12,244 (56,755) - (56,755) (44,511)
Exchange adjustments  E 3 3% 102 330 171 603 - - - 603
Aditions through EARERELREZ
acquisitions of subsidiaries 7 6,362 - 6,241 12,603 (40,507) - (40,507) (27,904)
Credited/(charged) to the 3 A/ (M1E) &4
consolidated income W&Ex
statement (Note 73)  (K#703)) 3436 854 707 4,997 (387) - (387) 4610
At 31 December 2010 R-5-%%F
T-AZt-H 9,900 10,606 9,941 30,447 (97,649) - (97,649) (67,202)
Exchange adustments ~ EERE 49 535 759 1,790 (1,547) - (1,547) 13
Additions through FRUENERA L
acquisition of subsidiaries 5 & (30
(Note 30) - - 3,528 3,528 (42,433) (115) (42,548) (39,020)
Credited to the consolidated :t AFAMER
income statement (fii76)
(Note 7(a)) 197 386 7302 7,885 1,012 115 1127 9,012
Charged to reserves REETR
(Note 11(@) (W) - - - - (43,59) (24) (43,620) (43,620)
At 31 December 2011 p-Z--%
T-A=t-H 10,593 11,527 21,530 43,650 (184,213) (24) (184,237) (140,587)
I I

HESREEZERERAT |

—E—EEH
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28

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(c)

(d)

(continued)
(ii) The Company

There were no significant deferred tax assets
and liabilities at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of HK$617,022,000 (2010: HK$539,704,000), as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2011, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounted to
HK$517,318,000 (2010: HK$261,036,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$25,866,000 (2010:
HK$13,052,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these PRC
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Annual Report 2011
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28 MBRRRANZAER (4)

(b) ERRBEEHBREEREE:

(c)

(d)

(%)

(i) X2 F
R-T——FR-F-F
FH+-A=+—BILESE
RNEERBEERAE-

AERZEEBBEE
BIEM sE2(s)FT 8 2 & 5
R AEBERRSBHEEIRE
617,022,000 L (=& — &
£F 1 539,704,000 70) - RA A
EBEBRBE R AR R BRI
K ] BE & BT AR 2R JE AR A ) LA
A EE-

AERZELEBEAE
RZE——F+=ZA=1+—8"
HAEEAETHERBARZ
Ao aNMEBCERERR
517,318,000 T (=& — &
F 261,036,000/ 7T ) ° IR T FH
18 & &25,866,000/8 71 ( — & —
T4 113,052,000 7T ) i K Ht
BIRZEREBEN 2D IRER 2
RIEm T A#ER  REABARRQR]
ZEHIZERBRMB AR ZREK
RERBET RN KA LR AT
BT UADIK o

29 EX-RERKRE

(a)

IRAERR 10 & B
AEEGEER 2 &80 2 F7)
RERGEHR BRI EN R E
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX-REBRRE (&)
(continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BREIRMDEE ()
(continued)
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual FHRFERNAR 7 B AREZEIZ
components of equity between the beginning and Dz EBEBEEHY T

the end of the year are set out below:

The Company b/ AT |
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 29(c))  (Note 29(d)(i))  (Note 29(d)(if))
AT REE EXfE 2 BER At

TET TET TET TET TET
(B&t29(c)) (BTaF29(d)i)) (Hz£29(d)i))

Balance at 1 January R=Z—FF
2010 —B—Rz&8H% 116,824 385,035 130,400 (264,953) 367,306

Changes in equity for —E—ZF &
2010: 25!
Total comprehensive ~ FR2E L5

income for the year - - - (93,192) (93,192)
Shares issued on the  {T{F A IREER

exercise of warrants TR

(Note 29(c)(ii)) (B aE29(c)i)) 2,000 2,152 (152) - 4,000
Share issued under  1RIEERRERTE %

share option scheme 177 200 733 (303) - 630
Equity-settled share-  RIR AL E AR

based transactions RS

(Note 26) (Hi26) - - 6,750 - 6,750
Share issued on rights {1t % B5 247 i% (7

issue 58,412 - (1,057) 1,057 58,412

Effect on equity arising IEH&(E B A
from the offsetting of REEL K H
loan receivable with 743 i R AR
convertible notes, the IR Z 15 M 4K
extinguishmentand ~ BEEAZFE
recognition of the

convertible notes - - (37,183) - (37,183)
Transfer between B e
reserves - - (4,733) 4,733 -
Balance at 31 R-B-Z5§
December 2010 +=-B=1+-H
2R 177,436 387,920 93,722 (352,355) 306,723

HESREEERERAT | =
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX-RERRE (&)
(continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BREZRMDEE ()
(continued)
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 29(c))  (Note 29(d)(i)) (Note 29(d)ii)
R R4 EE N1 E-40 3 @it
AT TAET TAET FAET AL

(Bt£29(c)) (Btst29(d)i)) (Bt a29(d)ii))

Balance at 1 January R=Z——%
2011 —B—Bz&&H 177,436 387,920 93,722 (352,355) 306,723

Changes in equity for —F——F &3

2011: 25
Total comprehensive ~ FRZE KR L

income for the year - -
Shares issued on the  T{E R RRIEE R 2%

exercise of warrants — 17P% {7

(Note 29(c)ii)) (HIz£29(c)ii)) 30,132 32,310 (2,181) - 60,261
Equity-settled share-  IRIEAREE LD

based transactions %t Z% 5

(16,183) (16,183)

(Note 26) (Ktit26) - - 11,065 - 11,065
Shares issued on BRMARRERR

the conversion of BTl

convertible notes (Hizt25(v))

(Note 25(iv)) 179,243 473,525 (85,958) - 566,810

Effect on equity arising BB EEREZET
from the redemption  ¥REEL 7 &
of the unsecured 2 (fs24)

notes (Note 24) - - (11,372) - (11,372)
Effect on equity BB R R R
arising from the FEMmEREE

extinguishmentand 4 7 &2 (Kfi
recognition of the 25(ii))
convertible notes

(Note 25(ii) - - 70,018 - 70,018
Balance at 31 R-E-—-&
December 2011 +=A=+-H”
=33 386,811 893,755 75,294 (368,538) 987,322

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(b) Dividends
(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$Nil).

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

The directors of the Company did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$Nil).

(BRIF=EER BRILETZS)

29 EXR-HEERE (£)

(b) BE

(i) EARARREGFFERE

AR ARREGFAEH#
ERZ 2 £ — 1R % F
EEMKRE

(i)

AKANBEETTNEZIKNN
Hz_Z—ZF+_=A
“Tt+—BUHEEEZXH

BB (BTN BB

JC) °©
(c) Share capital () K=K
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREBITRA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
BB eanE =!
TR FHET Th% FETT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of ®&E{E0.10/E T2
HK$0.10 each TR AR 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
Ordinary shares, ERITRHZ
issued and fully B :
paid:
At 1 January w—HA—H 1,774,361 177,436 1,168,241 116,824
Shares issued on TEAREER
the exercise of BITR (D
warrants ( Bt£29(c)ii) )
(Note 29(c)(ii) 301,320 30,132 20,000 2,000
Shares issued on B8 3 A 4 i 28 42 i
the conversion of  Z1T&(H
convertible notes  (Hf3t25(iv))
(Note 25(iv)) 1,792,424 179,243 - -
Shares issued under 15 1 i % # 51 2|
share option BT
scheme - - 2,000 200
Shares issued on AR B B 1T RR (D
rights issue - - 584,120 58,412
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 3,868,105 386,811 1,774,361 177,436
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital
(continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued on the exercise of
warrants

In 2010, an aggregate of 20,000,000 warrants
were exercised, and accordingly, 20,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
at HK$0.20 per share. Of the proceeds of
HK$4,000,000, HK$2,000,000 representing
the par value, were credited to share capital,
and the remaining proceeds of HK$2,000,000
were credited to the share premium account.
HK$152,000 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(n).

In 2011, an aggregate of 301,320,000
warrants were exercised, and accordingly,
301,320,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued at HK$0.20 per share. Of the
proceeds of HK$60,264,000, HK$30,132,000
representing the par value, were credited to
share capital, and the remaining proceeds,
net of transaction costs, of HK$30,129,000
were credited to the share premium account.
HK$2,181,000 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(n).

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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29 EXR-HEERE (#)

(0 BAE(#&)
(i) ZEREZRITRA
(#&)
BRERFEABREIAREIR
ZBEREERARARIAE LF
B —R A EBRNARA]
ZHRBEESELEARFI

fi o

(i) TEAREZFRT

2R

W2 -2 F 4 H
20,000,000/ R HEE B
JETT{E - At 20,000,000
SR mEEI0E T
BREE ERER0.208 T
77 ° 24,000,000/ 7T 2
Fr 13 5 B+ + 2,000,000
BT (EEREE) G
AR K& TS RIE
2,000,000/ L2 5T AR 9
SRIEHR ° 152,000/ 70 1R
BEHIFE2(n)FTE 2 2 FTBUR
BEEAREEEZRMDRE
E\Eo

W ——F A%
301,320,00017 SR AXAE 5 &
7714F - & 11£301,320,000/%
FRN0EB T 2 EREE
1R EM0.20/8 T 31T - FT1S
X IE60,264,0005% 7T F
T {830,132,000/% 7T & A
BRVIERRAS - &k T AT1S
HEHBRIZKAE B
30,129,000/ 7t E A BR 7]
YERZ 17 & (B Bk © 2,181,000
BILEREN 200 TEe
BB REEERES

P4 3t 18 B
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX-RERKRE (4)
(continued)
(c) Share capital (continued) (00 BE(E)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised (iii) AR & B 5K 151 K 2 B % 51
share options and warrants at the end RITEBIRER ZRER
of the reporting period 2Z 185k

2011 2010
Exercise period Exercise price Number Number
‘000 ‘000
—EF——F —E-FF
TR TEE 8 E # A
) T
Share options:
B R A
20 October 2010 to 19 October 2015 HK$0.315 42,000 42,000
“E-TFE+A-tHEE 0.315% 7T
—HEFTA+TIA
20 October 2011 to 19 October 2017 HK$0.49 176,100 -
—T——¢+ﬂ +H=E 0.49% 7T
—tF+A+HIH
218,100 42,000
Warrants:
AR RERE
17 August 2009 to 16 August 2011 HK$0.20 - 301,320
—EENFNATLERE 0.208 7T
—2——% N \A+~H
Each option or warrant entitles the holder SHEAES R RREEE TiE
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the ANRENNT 7 —IFE@mA% - %
Company. Further details of these options ERERERDRES E— P
and warrants are set out in Notes 26 and 27, &9 B E R % Z 8 & R 35 M =F
respectively, to these financial statements. 26827 °

HESTHHEZRERAT © =
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Capital reserve

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, capital
reserve comprises the following, where
applicable:

the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted
to directors, employees and service
providers of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii);

the amount allocated to the unexercised
equity component of convertible notes
issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for convertible notes in Note

2(m)(i);

the portion of the issue date fair value
of the unexercised warrants issued by
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for warrants in Note 2(n); and

the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000.

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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(d) RFEzZHERRR

(i)

(i)

R #EE

g ERNERR AR
E— NN\ —FRENEFL0

fFREZE ©

N
RZF——FR=F—F
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REEEAT &R (1E
)
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BA R R &R <
) AR 1T {68 B B HE X 1%
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Rt BURMER

- DETARBMET
AR RE Z M ARTT
DD 22
75 2 AR 45 I &£ 2(m)(i)
ERAABRRER

SETHUOR MR

—  ARBIFAEITHARTT
ER A EENETA
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

29 EXR-HEERE (£)

(d) EEZHERRR(E)

(iii) Fair value reserve (iii) AAERE
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative NRERERENRRE
net change in the fair value of available- RAFEEAIHEESHE
for-sale financial assets held at the end of EZARBERANZE T
the reporting period and is dealt with in AR A BT R 2(F) K 2() (1) P&,
accordance with the accounting policies set S RERERIE-
out in Notes 2(f) and 2(j)(i).

(iv) Property revaluation reserve (iv) WEMGERZE
The property revaluation reserve has been set MEMERESERILIL
up and is dealt with in accordance with the REM 29 IEE A2
accounting policies adopted for leasehold land EXEEF @ EHE
and buildings held for own use in Note 2(g). FRIE o

(v) Statutory reserves (v) ZERE
In accordance with the articles of association R RE B G FHHE R A
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the 2 AR E R AN B A [
PRC subsidiaries were required to set up BARERNEG T TS
certain statutory reserves, which were non- R ETFREE 2SR E
distributable. The transfers of these reserves ZEHBEHPHENE AR E
are at discretion of the directors of the PRC EWBEET A TERERE
subsidiaries. The statutory reserves can only ATREBES R EBERER
be utilised for predetermined means upon TEEAEE RS-
approval by the relevant authority.

(vi) Exchange reserve (vi) ERZEFEE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign EHFEESEMEREBD
exchange differences arising from the RREBRIFBITZIKE:
translation of the financial statements of B BERERBE BB
operations which have a functional currency EEXEMELEE -HHDE

other than Hong Kong dollars into Hong Kong
dollars. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(v).

HESREEZERERAT |

RIBM FE2(V) P8l 2 B 5K
REEIHE -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(e) Distributable reserves

(f)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$Nil (2010:
HK$Nil). The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$Nil).

Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes bank and other loans,
unsecured notes and convertible notes) less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy was to continue
to lower the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group’s
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX-REBRRE (&)
(continued)
(f) Capital management (continued) (fy BEXEE(E)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 NZE——FR —E-—FTF+
December 2011 and 2010 is as follows: A=+—8 &HAXIEEHE
AREERIE
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F T TF ZB——F ZTITF
TFHET FAET FExT FAET
Current liabilities: mEEE:
Bank and other loans 21T &
H B 5 106,300 149,371 - -
Unsecured notes EREE 71,658 - 71,658 -

Non-current liabilities: JFERBIBEE -
Bank and other loans  $84T7 &%

HEaE® 448,993 216,821 - -

Unsecured notes A = - 98,661 - 98,661

Convertible notes AR EIE 1,123,370 1,275,102 1,123,370 1,275,102

Total debt WEE 1,750,321 1,739,955 1,195,028 1,373,763
Less: cash and cash e BeKkIREe

equivalents £{EEE (236,012) (115,101) (442) (2,954)

Adjusted net debt  KHEFEE 1,514,309 1,624,854 1,194,586 1,370,809

Total equity and B RSB E
adjusted capital R4aEa 1,458,246 405,469 987,322 306,723

Adjusted net debt-to- ZLFAR FFEEY

capital ratio Bt E 104% 401% 121% 447 %
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AN REEAIFBATBERT
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SNE N2 & N E AR R o
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 January 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with Grand Well to acquire 100% equity
interests in Ideal Mix and its subsidiaries (the “Ideal Mix
Group”), a group which owned two department stores
and five supermarkets in the PRC, for a consideration
of HK$389.5 million. Of the consideration, HK$254.0
million is to be satisfied in cash and the remaining
HK$135.5 million is to be satisfied through the issuance
of the Grand Well Convertible Notes (see Note 25(iii)).
The above acquisition was completed on 24 May 2011.

The directors of the Company considered that the
acquisition was in line with the Group’s long-term
strategic goals for its department store business in the
PRC. The acquisition represented a good opportunity
for the Group to expand its current department store
operations in the PRC. The directors also considered that
further expansion of the Group’s sales network would
enhance the Group’s ability to achieve economies of
scale, increase its market share and diversify its customer
base through further differentiation of products and the
added locations of its department stores. The acquisition
could further enhance the geographical coverage of
the Group and to reduce the number of competitors in
the North-western region of the PRC. It would further
consolidate the Group’s market position in that region
and strengthen the Group’s brand awareness and image.

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30 WEBMIB A= (&)

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in it T RS 2 PIRR R E R P
the above acquisition were as follows: EEZABNT:

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustments acquisition
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

=X

W BB Al AR E (B AREFAE WEEE

FHET FET FAET
Fixed assets (Note 13) BEEEE (Mit13) 121,670 2,457 124,127
Intangible assets (Note 14) mEEE (KFat14) - 89,310 89,310
Deferred tax assets (Note 28(b)) iEiLF: 18 & E
(BfaE28(b)) 3,528 - 3,528
Inventories FE 25,636 - 25,636
Available-for-sale financial assets A] ft 1 & & §1 & &= 93,741 - 93,741
Trade and other receivables P UK B 3R B L A B MR 5K 29,719 - 29,719
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEEE 35,313 - 35,313
Trade and other payables JRE <1 B 5K K L A B 1 3K (192,886) (40,820) (233,706)
Current taxation (Note 28(a))  BVHERFRIE (Ff7£28(a)) (2,103) - (2,103)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEEE
(Note 28(b)) (Ht#£28(b)) (19,606) (22,942) (42,548)

Net identifiable assets acquired Uit & 2 7] 5 5l

BEFE 95,012 28,005 123,017
Goodwill (Note 15) B8 (ffat15) 266,466
Total consideration BB 389,483
Pre-acquisition carrying amounts of the acquiree’s assets ERRBEEER HEBEHZEER
and liabilities were determined based on applicable BEZWEANRAENIREERS
HKFRSs immediately before the acquisition. The values of B S EREE - RIE R R
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised on 2EE BEEKSARAEZEEHAE
acquisition are their estimated fair values. In determining EEstAnBE-RETETCEENE
the fair values of fixed assets and intangible assets, WEEZARER AQARESEZ
the directors of the Company have referenced the fair ERBEGEMELE ZGEREZA

value adjustments to valuation reports issued by an REFE - FIRAZIEE T EBKA
independent valuer. The valuation methods adopted were ECmEERWASE (n@EA) o
cost approach, market approach and income approach,

where applicable.
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

31

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Pursuant to the above equity transfer agreement, the
Group is liable to pay additional consideration to Grand
Well with reference to the pre-acquisition retained profits
of the Ideal Mix Group upon the fulfilment of certain
conditions by the equity shareholder of Grand Well. The
directors of the Company was in the midst of estimating
the fair value of such contingent consideration on the
acquisition date and as of 30 June 2011 and therefore
the contingent consideration was provisionally recorded
at HK$Nil in the Company’s interim report for the six-
month period ended 30 June 2011. The directors of
the Company subsequently determined the fair value of
the above-mentioned contingent consideration at the
acquisition date to be RMB33.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$40.8 million) and made an adjustment
to retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts
previously recognised. Accordingly, the net identifiable
assets decreased from HK$163.8 million, as recorded on
the acquisition date, to HK$123.0 million, whereas the
amount of goodwill increased from HK$225.7 million, as
recorded on the acquisition date, to HK$266.5 million.

From the date of the above acquisition to 31 December
2011, the Ideal Mix Group contributed net profit of
HK$13.6 million to the Group in 2011. Had the above
acquisition been occurred on 1 January 2011, the
directors of the Company estimate that the consolidated
turnover and consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2011 would have been HK$1,452.5 million
and HK$275.7 million, respectively.

ACQUISITIONS OF NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 30 December 2010, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into various
share transfer agreements to acquire the remaining
49% equity interests in Ginwa Tangrenjie from the then
non-controlling equity holders of Ginwa Tangrenjie at
a total consideration of RMB47.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$56.9 million).

Upon completion of the above acquisitions on 16
May 2011, Ginwa Tangrenjie became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Consequently, the Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$5.8 million.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, and trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place, and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Loan receivables mainly represented a loan due from
an affiliate of an equity shareholder of the Company.
The Group has obtained collateral from this equity
shareholder, and accordingly, the management of the
Group expects such balance is with minimal credit risk.

Investments are in liquid equity and debt securities
issued by financial institutions in the PRC. Given the
high credit standing of these financial institutions,
the management of the Group does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the debtor as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the debtor operates. Trade receivables are generally due
within 3 months from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from debtors.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each debtor rather
than the industry or country in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the end
of the reporting period, 45% (2010: 37%) and 86%
(2010: 76%) of the total trade receivable was due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest
debtors, respectively. Trade receivables are mainly
due from credit card centres owned by state-owned
financial institutions in the PRC, and accordingly, the
management of the Group views the concentration and
credit risks to be low.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
financial guarantees given by the Group as set out
in Note 34, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Note 34.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, and
trade and other receivables are set out in Notes 17,
19 and 20, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surplus and raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined level of authority. The Group's policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$826.6 million. The Group will
continue to undertake various measures in order to
further improve its liquidity position in the short and
longer term.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIRXEBREERAAME (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) Z"EBELEARE (&)

The following tables show the remaining TRIEREBRART ZIEDT
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting EerBERTESREBERTR
period of the Group’s and of the Company’s EHR B T ENRNEER A
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative AIERTIRESYRITBEE SR
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual E(EREAGHNFEFE X
undiscounted cash flows (including interest WMEF B A - BIRBR IS 2
payments computed using contractual rates or, if RZHEFFEZF BT AR
floating, based on rates current at the end of the REB R ARRNTI A REH ERIEK
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group TR HEEY:

and the Company can be required to pay:

The Group rEE
201
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
Z8--F
ARRFTRALRM
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1 1 year but 2 years amount at
yearoron less than but less than ~ More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
i
—E--F
t=A
-Fag® -FUE  WEHNE =t-H

REXE BIRME EIREF EENUL ax 2REE
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Trade and other payables ~ EREBRFRE

[ ANE 1,087,054 - - - 1,087,054 1,087,054
Bank and other loans RORELER 197,615 67,252 280,841 314,706 860,414 555,293
Unsecured notes EERZE 84,402 - - - 84,402 71,658
Convertible notes ThkEE 17,120 176,589 1,121,418 - 1315127 1,123,370

1,386,191 243,841 1,402,259 314,706 3,346,997 2,837,375

HESTHEEERERAT



otes to the financial statements

B 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIEERKRETERDAAME (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) ZEBELERE (&)
2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—Z2-%%
ANATRR SR
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1 1 year but 2 years amount at
year or on less than  but less than ~ More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
N
—E-%F
TZA
—FRg%  —ENE RENLE =t-H
REXE BIRRE BIRDE RENULE B  ZREE
TEL THEL TEL FEL FEL FEL
Trade and other payables ~ EREBRFH R E
RT3 622,281 - - - 622281 622,281
Bank and other loans BRITREMER 171,368 35,859 98,642 162,457 468,326 366,192
Unsecured notes EERAER - 138,702 - - 138,702 98,661
Convertible notes g E3 26,610 26,610 1,511,038 - 1,564,258 1,275,102

820,259 201,171 1,609,680 162,457 2,793,567 2,362,236
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

32 MIBEMEBRAAE (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) Z"EBELEARE (&)
The Company Kidg
2011
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ZB--F
ANAFRRER
More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1 1 year but but less amount at
yearoron less than than  More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2011
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
R
“B--F
tZA
-Fag —-FUE  WEHNE =t-H
REX®R EBIRWE BIREE  BFUE #x KREE
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Other payables H AT 44,422 - - - 44,422 44,422
Unsecured notes EERZE 84,402 - - - 84,402 71,658
Convertible notes REDES 17,120 176,589 1,121,418 - 1315127 1,123,370
145,944 176,589 1,121,418 - 1,443,951 1,239,450
2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—2-%%
ARARRRER
More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1 1 year but but less amount at
year or on less than than  More than 31 December
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
S
“B-TF
TZA
—FR%  —FUE  WENME =t-H
REXE BIRRE BEIRDE RENUE Bt EREE
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Other payables B it BT 3R 462,084 - - - 462,084 462,084
Unsecured notes BEAZE - 138,702 - - 138,702 98,661
Convertible notes HRRER 26,610 26,610 1,511,038 - 1,564,258 1,275,102
438,694 165,312 1,511,038 - 2165044 1,835,847
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Interest rate risk

otes to the financial statements
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s
interest bearing borrowings at the end of the

reporting period.

Fixed rate & 7E ) &
borrowings: BE:
Bank and other RITRE
loans B K
Convertible notes Al A%
=g

EE Ik
e

Variable rate

borrowings: 8H
Bank and other RITRE
loans L E
Total borrowings BELAE

Fixed rate borrowings & & F| R £ &
as a percentage of (HfEE 4258
total borrowings

ZBADH
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32 BBERBEERDAME(H)

() F=mEb
AEEZNEXREBREZREEE
85 o 42 ] 8 A 3R Ko 1% [ T A
BITZEREANEE D HIAZR
TREF KRR KRR EFE
[ B

(i) FIEER
TR ANEERAR T
AAEEERREHRZA

R
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—F——-F —T—TF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
= kS B =
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FHET THET
- - 7.52% 27,174
19.61% 89,773 21.50% 981,827
89,773 1,009,001
6.89%- 5.74%-
1580% 555203 872% _ 339018
645,066 1,348,019
14% 75%
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(BrIF=HIEH -

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

ERILETZ7)

32 BiIBRAKREERAR

() F=mbx (&)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile (continued)

(i) FIEHR (&)
The Company

KAF
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRA=E BERRF =
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FERT FHET
Fixed rate & 7 F) =
borrowings: BE:
Convertible notes A& f%
E37: 19.61% 89,773 21.50% 981,827
Total borrowings BEERE 89,773 981,827
Fixed rate borrowings & F fl R £ &
as a percentage of (HfEE 4258
total borrowings ZED 100% 100%
Sensitivity analysis (i) SBEMED T
At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a R ——F+ = A
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points =t+t—B -HEANEEER

in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and increased/
decreased the Group’s accumulated losses by
approximately HK$4.2 million (2010: HK$2.5
million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit after tax and accumulated
losses is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2010.
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FrEEMA #EHEAZREF

TEZBRT  NEEK
Fiig BB, 18k
AREBERFEBRGE N
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—Z 4 :2,500,000/8
JT) °

bt B R D AT FE R A R
o B R R R K £ B P 4%
BZRZEHFETEZIE
MEesmMIAEmMEE 2R
CREFMERR HAE
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (d) E*%EB%
AEBBAAFEEERR  RE

32 MBEREERQAEH)

The Group is not exposed to currency risk as no
transactions are conducted in a foreign currency BlTESSARESER 7 E
other than the functional currency of the operations MUINB RSB Bz INE
to which the transactions relate. 170

(e)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

J Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data.

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data.

The Group’s and the Company’s financial
instruments carried at fair value at 31
December 2011 and 2010 are all measured
under Level 2.

Annual Report 2011
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIRXEBREERAAME (&)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued) (e) DAE(E)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair (i) BAREYKRZz:mMT A
value (continued) (%)
The Group and the Company
AEERAEARAT
Level 2
E24
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ET-ZF
FHEX FHET
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments: {74 & F T A :
— Option to acquire additional ~— —REEEEINA AL ZiE 2
convertible notes (Note 22) HARE (fyat22) - (1,808)
— Call option under the BMRL ~ —BMRLZEEIE T 7 28 HA
Notes (Note 25(i)) W (Bfa£253)) 12,842 120,557
— Conversion and redemption —Hony A % =48 K Hony
options under the Hony MR ERICEIR KL
Convertible Notes and the A& [o] B
Hony Convertible Notes |l (K1 z£25(ii) )
(Note 25(ii))) (418,319) (559,862)
— Call and conversion options —Grand WellA] #2 i% = #%
under the Grand Well 2 R B N 95 4 B
Convertible Notes W (H 5F25(ii) )
(Note 25(iii))) (24,875) -
(430,352) (441,113)
(ii) Fair values of financial instruments (i) XHBEAAEBIERZSH
carried at other than fair value TEHAARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and of R_E——FER—E—F
the Company’s financial instruments carried #+—-A=+—8 K=&
at cost or amortised cost are not materially T AN B BA K AN o 4 5
different from their fair values as at 31 KA S T AE
December 2011 and 2010 except as follows: AEEEALBETES A
Zhl T FIEBRIN -
The Group rEH
2011 2010
—E2B——F —T-FTF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREE ARE FREE AU =]
FHERT FET FAT FAT
Loan receivables JE W & X 805,458 696,045 681,174 662,606
Long-term bank and KHIFRTT KR H
other loans fih B 5K 448,993 427,830 216,821 204,069
Unsecured notes 4 2= R 71,658 71,774 98,661 104,271
Convertible notes — FAJ#RZZ 1 —
liability components & & &85 693,018 649,513 835,797 798,937

HESHEEERERAT W —B——FFH |
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(BRI=BEHEE BRILETZ)

32 MHKEREERAARE (B)

(e) Fair values (continued) (e) DAE(£E)

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments (i) LHEBEAAREIERZZH
carried at other than fair value TEWAARE (&)
(continued)

The Company Kina
2011 2010
—E——-F —T-FF
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value amount Fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REE ARE FREE NRlE
FHERT TER FHET FHET
Unsecured notes BEEMERE 71,658 71,774 98,661 104,271
Convertible notes — A ¥R =45 —
liability components & & 215 693,018 649,513 835,797 798,937

(f) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

(i) Derivatives

The fair values of derivatives are determined
based on valuation models at the end of the
reporting period. Details of the assumptions
adopted are disclosed in Note 25.

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 BIEEBREERAALE (£)
VALUES (continued)

(f) Estimation of fair values (continued) f) DAREMRE(E)

(iij) Loan receivables, long-term bank and (i) EWEF REHETRA
other loans, unsecured notes and MERH EHFEZEZER T
convertible notes - liability components BREE-BEES5%

The fair value is estimated as the present value NAEDRRRRERE
of future cash flows, discounted at current ZREsM T A ZHITH
market interest rates for similar financial BRI ERBEIR % 2 IREMH
instruments. ite

The Group uses the interest rate published by REBHEATREARETT
the People’s Bank of China as of 31 December RZE——FR_ZE—F
2011 and 2010 plus an adequate constant F+-_A=+—HB2AMHz
credit spread to discount loan receivables and FEMEMEEEERE
long-term bank and other loans. The Group BRI W E R M R EART
uses the risk free interest rate reference to the NEMER - KEEKE
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as of 31 EHBIIEELEEN _-_F
December 2011 and 2010 plus credit spread —— FEE_E-TFE+
of comparable notes with similar credit rating, A=Z+—HzZERRF X
coupons and maturities to discount the liability MEEBRUEETR B
components of the convertible notes and EREEBZAEERE
unsecured notes. The interest rates used are as EZEEEEZ0EIR 3%
follows: EHRaEE M REKA

S PIERMZ M EIT -

2011 2010
—g—-% ~—T-%F

Loan receivables JEUE 21.57% 13.85%
Long-term bank and other loans & Hi$R 77 & E fih & 3% 9.17% 7.04%
Unsecured notes I 22 19.127% 15.968%

Convertible notes AR EE
— liability components —BEM 10.60%- 8.539%-
20.45% 23.397%

HESREEERERAT |
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33 COMMITMENTS 33 E&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREE
At 31 December 2011, the outstanding capital R-_E——F+_-_A=+—8"
commitments of the Group not provided for in the REBRIELGA P TEHRER T EE
consolidated financial statements were as follows: ZARMNERATENT
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——F —_ZET-FF
FET FHET
Commitments in respect of purchase BB & F & &E 2 & E
of fixed assets
— Contracted for —B2& % 6,850 15,645
Commitments in respect of BB B AR ZEIE
investments in subsidiaries
— Contracted for (Note 36) —B &4 (KaE36) 655,150 -
662,000 15,645
At 31 December 2011, capital commitments in N-_ZE——FE+—-_A=+—H "
respect of purchase of fixed assets are for leasehold EREEETEE Y BAEWETY
improvements to be installed in the Group’s BN AER 7 BEANRIERLY
department store operations. EoHEREBEER-

= Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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33 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

(BRIF=EHEH  TRILETZ5)

33 A& (&)
(b) REHERIE

RZE—F+=ZA=+—8"

BRETAIHEH REHELREZ

B 2 ERENRBELT

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——F —E-TF

TER FHET

Within 1 year —F R 137,192 69,017
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 380,669 237,625
After 5 years hF 1% 789,300 743,336
1,307,161 1,049,978

The Group leases properties for the use by its
department store and supermarket operations
under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 1 to 20 years, where all terms
are renegotiated upon renewal. One of the leases
includes contingent rentals which are calculated
based on a fixed percentage on the department
store’s turnover.

Properties leased out under operating leases

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

REBRBELEHEHEETY
EHEAERR MBRTISRS
A - ZEFHE—RNTRHA—
E-+F MABGRRRERR
YR EHEE - BT —HEER
RIRBEAERRERBEZEER
DEFEZRAEE -

() RELEHEHEZWE
R-TF——F+_A=+—8"
AEBERBEIARHEZEETHE
ERRREW HEBEERBRER

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

The Group leases out part of its department stores
and office premises under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
10 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon
renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent
rentals which are calculated based on a fixed
percentage on the tenants’ turnover.

R
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F——F5 —Z2=F
FHET FET
—F R 23,965 15,603
—FHERAFRN 51,389 56,362
hFi% 29,612 26,881
104,966 98,846

AEBERBELEHELHAER
AlZEDBYRERAE - ZF
HE-—RNTBB—E+F M
B RRAI N EHRSEHEE
ETHERBEREEPEREZ
EEBADHLAEZRREE -
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
L]

Legal claim

Ginwa Bell Tower, a subsidiary of the Group, has
provided a guarantee on bank loan of RMB24.0
million drawn by a third party in 2005. This third
party has subsequently defaulted repayment on
the bank loan and has yet to repay the bank loan
as of the date of these financial statements. In
October 2006 and December 2009, Ginwa Bell
Tower received court judgements which found
that both the third party and Ginwa Bell Tower to
be jointly and severally liable for the repayment
of the defaulted bank loan plus interest accrued
thereof. The court judgements have required Ginwa
Bell Tower to fulfil its obligation as the guarantor.
Under an agreement entered into between Ginwa
Bell Tower and Ginwa Investments in 2008, Ginwa
Investments has agreed to indemnify Ginwa Bell
Tower on any losses incurred arising from the
above guarantee. As of 31 December 2011, the
defaulted bank loan plus accrued interest amounted
to RMB17.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$21.2 million). The directors of the Company
believe the indemnity agreement entered into with
Ginwa Investments will enable the Group to recover
any losses the Group may have incurred arising from
the above guarantee. Accordingly, no provision has
been made in respect of this claim.

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of the reporting period, and in
addition to the guarantee mentioned in Note 34(a),
the Group has issued the following guarantees:

(i) A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan of
RMB90.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$111.0 million) drawn by Ginwa
Investments in 2008. The loan will mature in
July 2012. In September 2010, Ginwa Bell
Tower and Ginwa Investments have entered
into an agreement, where Ginwa Investments
has agreed to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower
on any losses incurred arising from the above
guarantee.

Annual Report 2011
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan of
RMB13.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$16.3 million) drawn by Ginwa Investments
in 2007. The loan will mature in September
2013. In August 2008, Ginwa Bell Tower
and Ginwa Investments have entered into an
agreement, where Ginwa Investments has
agreed to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on
any losses incurred arising from the above
guarantee.

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower
in respect of a loan of RMB13.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$16.3 million)
granted by a third party to Ginwa Investments
in August 2005. Ginwa Investments has
defaulted repayment on the loan but has
subsequently agreed with this third party
on a revised repayment schedule. As of 31
December 2011, the outstanding loan balance
is RMB9.5 million (equivalunt to approximately
HK$11.7 million).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company do not consider it probable that
a claim will be made against the Group under any
of the above guarantees. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under
the guarantees issued is the outstanding amount
of the bank and other loans of RMB112.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$139.0 million) plus
accrued interest.

(BrIF=HIEH -

ERILETZ7)
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(b) BHZHBER (H)

(ii)

(iii)

CHEEERSIEREN =
T LFRM 2 BRTT
EHAR®13,200,0007T
(& R #16,300,00078
ﬂfﬁa%{ ZER - ZEE
TER—_EBE—=FHA%
Eﬂ RZEBEZENEFENA &
EEERESERECF L
g Bt @EREER
EHEEEZBERL I
BREEZEMBL-

—REZTREBEZEE
=R ZEERENAE
FEIEREZERARE
13,200,0007C (FHE R4
16,300,000/ T ) i B &
TEEREZERA S

TESEIZ é?ETx’ﬁT’ﬂEKE
EZFEEF BEERCE A
%*ELW—@?&{ P4
BERAE -BE-FT——
F+-A=+—R Wk
BEZEFBRB/ARE

9,500,000 T (# & R 4
11,700,000/ 7T ) ©

RIEBRR  NRAREERES
TARATREGRIE ) LR
HAEBIRHERE - AEBRIK
HEHRZEBEHERET &
SEEBEARHMKEE ZRITEN
AR #112,700,0007T (HHE R
#9139,000,000/% 7T ) hi f& 51 F

B o
Ao




otes to the financial statements

B 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (Br3FZE B8 & BIAE T ZE51)

35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 EXBEALIRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRZEMBEREREMI D FTEE &
these financial statements, the Group entered into the FRON REBETRETATERBEEA
following material related party transactions. TR
(a) Transactions with equity shareholders of the (a) EAXARATBRARBEEHBEAL
Company and their affiliates: ET2ZX3
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-FF
FHERT FAET
Interest expenses (Note i) FERXZ (Kfti) 13,370 27,655
Interest income (Note ii) B A (K aEii) 25,810 51,961
Management service fee income BEERFERA 8,684 7,740
Operating lease expenses KEHERX 21,190 -
Purchase of leasehold land and EEHETHRET 1B
buildings, net of related bank loan HERITER - 508,517
Net advances received (Note iii) BB FUF R (B aEiii) 41,278 4,015
Guarantees provided by and/or RBERRBEALTRAE
secured by properties of related B2 $R17T R A A B FRIEH
parties for the Group’s bank and K/ SAMEEDR 2 BIR
other loans at the end of the (R Ht7E23)
reporting period (see Note 23) 77,986 128,218
Further details on the acquisition of subsidiaries M —ZAEATHHEHER
from a related party and guarantees the Group TR ARER ARE A TIREER
provided for a related party are set out in Notes 30 ZE—SFHBE DRI HE R M FE30
and 34, respectively. 34
Notes: Wiit
(i) Interest expenses for the year ended 31 December (i) BE—ZEZ——F+=-_fF=1—
2011 represented interest charges arose from the BEFEZMERZZRE
Hony Convertible Notes and the Hony Convertible Hony AJ #2 i 52 #& X2 Hony AJ 44
Notes Il, where interest expenses for the year ended BREHIZABEZH  MEZE
31 December 2010 represented interest charges —E-TFE+-_A=+—HIt
arose from the BMRL Notes. FEZ BRI ZEBMRLE

BB

(i) Interest income represented interest charges on the iy FEWAEERSTEREER
loan receivable from Ginwa Investments. ZRBEBAH-

(i) Advances received from related parties are (i) MEAEATWE RFARE
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed mIEH - R B RWEETEEE
terms of repayment. & 3K

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 ERBAEALIRS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances e REEREYER
and benefits in kind

Retirement scheme contributions RORET &30

Share-based payments R D 1~ 3%

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see

FTEEBEASHTM
TEEEABZHM (BREME
SFIRBEE N TARRES 2K
AN MEIMTRBEEN TE T &
SEMER 2B

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F-—-5 Z—T-ZF
TR THET
17,328 11,931
202 185

3,719 2,330
21,249 14,446

@Bt ATEIRA] R

Note 6(b)). (R MsE6(D)) °
36 NON-ADJUSTING SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 36 EHHRBRZIIFFAEREIF
(@) Acquisition of entire equity interests in (a) WEBETEZ2ZZBE
Qianhui

On 16 May 2011, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into a share transfer
agreement to acquire the entire equity interests
in Qianhui, which as a condition precedent to this
acquisition, Qianhui is to acquire the properties that
one of the Group’s department stores is currently
situated. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group will
acquire the entire equity interests of Qianhui at a
total consideration of RMB500.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$616.8 million).

Upon completion of the above acquisition on 16
January 2012, Qianhui became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

HESTHEEERERAT

R-E——FRHA+B AR
AEBR—HE2ENBAAEL
RS 17 82 53 17 5 A UK BB T [& (T [E
BelEAEEREr—HBEE
NEREE 2% ZAILIE
W EE R S R ) 2 2 B R
BiIEHZE  AEEHARREA
R #500,000,0007T (& R4
616,800,0007% 7T ) W B F & 2

SRR AE -

BB EER_T——F—A
T/RATKE  TERRANEE
ZEEWBATF -
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36

37

38

NON-ADJUSTING SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(continued)

(b) Acquisition of entire equity interests in CPI
Asia Big Bell 2 Limited (“Big Bell 2")

On 9 June 2011, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into a share transfer
agreement to acquire the entire equity interests
in Big Bell 2, which owns the properties that one
of the Group’s department stores is currently
situated. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group will
acquire the entire equity interests of Big Bell 2 at a
consideration of RMB350.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$432.8 million) plus an interest
charge of 9% per annum on the consideration to
be accrued from 10 June 2011 to the acquisition
completion date. Up to the date of issue of these
financial statements, the above acquisition has yet
to be completed.

The directors of the Company have confirmed
that the Group has commenced considering the
potential financial impact of the above acquisition
but is not yet in a position to determine the
potential financial impact of the above acquisition
on the Group’s results of operations in future
periods and financial position at future dates.

IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 December 2011, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate holding company of the Group to
be Best Mineral Resources Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

, = Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
L]

36

37

38

(BRI=BEHEE BRILETZ)

REAHBRZIEAEEE

(%)
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 15, 25, 26 and 32 contain information about the
assumptions and the risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment, fair value of financial instruments and
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the
required payments. The management bases the
estimates on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(j)(ii). The
carrying amounts of long-lived assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and
the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
the recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the carrying value of
the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods,
where applicable.
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39 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

()

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual values.
The management reviews the estimated useful
lives and the residual values of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The determination of the useful lives and the
residual values are based on historical experience
with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

(BRI=BHEE BRILETZ)

39 EFHETR MG (&)

40

()

BB M KA BE =
F+-g=+-
2 5T A

e
BEEEITEEEREMEF
EER  REE A ER
FRUBRENE - EHEEEH
BREE AR AFRER
SEE UBERTARSEHA
R TEXHER - A EAF
REFSGEESIREBERUEEZ
BELRIE - HBE
REAEH ARRBAMZITE
XHMEFHE-

T —
BLEFEE
BRI ZBTTR

REZEERE®

BET

AREVBHRAY FEG

J%AAE%%uTﬁ$W@177
——F+ZA=+—RILFEEKA
MARZEM B RERRANFE E

a-

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for

first-time adopters

EHZ BT R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BB HRELENE IR (BRIRN) [BEAXERABEHHHE LR 5185 XK
MELBENBEREFANETRLEREZBRHAE]

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets

BEMBREENETR (BAIN) (2B TA RE-SHEEZEE]

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 40 CHEMAENARREBEZE=Z——

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND E+-HA=+—-RHILEE4XE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET M2 el 28] ZR 2 &I R
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RECBESE (&)

DECEMBER 2011 (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RIS BHRz2ERRZ
SHHBEN
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation

of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
ERGHENFE R (BFIR) [ERABREX -2 AMEEKHER ] —E-——F+H—H
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
BEMBRELERNEI105 (455 B #H#* —E—=%—H—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
BRMBREERNE R [BaE L H ] —E—=%—A—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
ERUBREERNF 125 [ RAMER R KE] —E—=%—H—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
BAEMBREERNE R [0 EFFE] —E—=%—A—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
BB ENE2TR [ BUABHEK] (ZT——F) —T—=%—A—H
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures (2011) 1 January 2013
ERGHEUNF2R [(REBELAIREERE] (ZF——F) —ET-=%—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Disclosures —

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2013
EEMBRELENETR (BFTR)

(ERTA HKE-KE-BRiFeHEERTHEE] —E-=%—H—H
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
BRI ERNE 195 (LT [EEEF] —ET—=%—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 20, Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine 1 January 2013
5% (BRMEREREEZE®)F20% [BEXBEEERRZ FIRAR] —E-=%—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
BT EREIN (BFIA) (@@L A 23— HifemEERSMEE] —T-mHFE—-A—H
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2009)
BEAVMBRELENESR 2 TA(ZZEZNF)]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010)
BEEMGRELENESR 2@ TA(ZT—FF)]
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RIS BHR &R
S HEER

1 January 2015
—Z—h¥%—H—H

1 January 2015
—ET—-h%—HA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures — Mandatory effective date and transition

disclosures

1 January 2015

BEVEMEENESE (BAIN) (2@ TA] REEMBREETHR

[/ TR : 55— % b1t B H B N8 K2 55

The directors of the Company have confirmed that
the Group has commenced considering the potential
impact of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations but is not yet in a position
to determine whether these new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations will have a significant
impact on how the Group’s results of operations and
financial position are prepared and presented. These new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
may result in changes in the future as to how the Group’s
results and financial position are prepared and presented.
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